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Forward Looking Statement 
 

Statement made in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections, estimates, expectations may be “Forward-looking statements” within the meaning of 
applicable securities laws & regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied. 
Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include economic 
conditions affecting demand supply and price conditions in the markets in which the Company 
operates, changes in the government regulations, tax laws & other statutes & other incidental factors. 
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                     CORPORATE INFORMATION  
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Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia     
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resignation of Mr Piyush Prakash w.e.f 18.06.2020 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY SECRETARY & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur (FCS:9042) 
 

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT 
M/s Sky Line Financial Services Pvt Ltd 
D-153-A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial area Phase-I,  

New Delhi-110020 
Tel:91-11-40450193-97 

Fax: 91-11-30857562  Email:admin@skylinerta.com 
 

BANKERS 
ICICI BANK 

AUDITORS 
 
STATUTORY 
M/s M.K Jain & Co, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi  

 
INTERNAL 
M/s SSG & Co, Chartered Accountants, Delhi 

 
SECRETARIAL 
M/s Vijay Kaul & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries, Delhi 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
REGISTERED OFFICE  
Shop# 1, Country Inn, Mehragaon, 
Bhimtal, Uttarakhand 248179 

 
CORPORATE OFFICE 
B-210, Ansal Chamber-I,  

Bhikaji Cama Place,New Delhi-110066 

 

INVESTOR EMAIL ID 
investor@wellesleycorp.com 
 
WEBSITE 
www.wellesleycorp.com 
 
LISTING OF EQUITY SHARE 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 
(Code/Symbol : 532016/ Wellesley ) (ISIN:INE176O01011 

 
CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (CIN) 
L45202UR1991PLC000604 

 
 

         

1

Tel:91-11-40450193-97
mailto:investor@wellesleycorp.com
http://www.wellesleycorp.com/


 
   Annual Report 2019-20 

NOTICE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 29TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY,15TH SEPTEMBER,2020AT 
10:00 AM AT “COUNTRY INN HOTEL & RESORTS ”, MEHRAGOAN, 
BHIMTAL,UTTARAKHAND-248179,TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING 
BUSINESS:- 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS:- 
 

1. To receive, considerand adoptthe Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31,2020 and the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Sadhana Rai (DIN: 01585720), who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment; 
 

 
By order of the Board of Directors 

   
 

       Sumeer Narain Mathur 

Company Secretary & 
Chief FinancialOfficer 
Membership no:FCS9042 
Address:Houseno:04,Seemant 
Vihar,Behind Radisson Hotel,  
Kaushambi,Ghaziabad-201014 

 
Date:27th, June,2020  
Place: New Delhi  
 
A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (THE “MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE ON A POLL, INSTEAD OF HERSELF/ HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED 
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY 
SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE 
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE 

COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members 
not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total 
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. However, a member holding more than 
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a 
single person as  proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other shareholder. The 
instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement 
of the meeting. A Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the 
Companies, Societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as 
applicable. 
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1. Only registered members of the Company holding shares as on the cut-off date decided 
for the purpose, being 07th September,2020, or any proxy appointed by such registered 
member may attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting as provided under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

2. Electronic copy of the Notice of the aforesaid Annual General Meeting of the Company 
inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-Voting along with Attendance Slip and 
Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the 
Company for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard 
copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, physical 
copies of the Notice of the aforesaid Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia 
indicating the process and manner of e-Voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy 
Form is being sent in the permitted mode. The cut-off date is decided for the purpose of 
reckoning the number of shareholders eligible to receive notice of AGM is 07th 
September,2020 . 

 

3. Voting Rights: Shareholders holding Equity Shares shall have one vote per share as 
shown against their holding and shareholders 

 
4. Voting through Electronic means In Compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to 
vote means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). 

 
5. Similarly, Members opting to vote physically can do the same by remaining present at the 

meeting and should not exercise the option for e-voting. However, in case Members cast 
their vote exercising both the options, i.e. physical and e-voting, then votes cast through 
e-voting shall be only be taken into consideration and treated valid whereas votes cast 
physically at the meeting shall be treated as invalid. The “E-Voting “procedure along 
with the user id and password of each shareholder is annexed along with the proxy form 
at the end of the annualreport. 
 

6. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution 
authorising their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 
 

7. Members/Proxies should fill in the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting and bring 
their Attendance Slips along with their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting. 

 
8. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the 

order of names will beentitled to vote. 
 

9. Members who hold shares in electronic form are requested to write their DP ID and 
Client ID numbers and those who hold share(s) in physical form are requested to write 
their Folio Number in the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting to facilitate 
identification of membership at the Meeting.  
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10. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by 

the Members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except 
Saturdays between 11.00 A.M. and 2.00 P.M. up to the date of the Meeting.  

 
11. The Company’s Register of Members and Transfer Books will remain closed from 12th 

September,2020 to 17th September,2020(both days inclusive) for the purpose of the 
Meeting, and the “E-Voting “ facility shall be open for the period from 09:00 hours of 12th 

September,2020 to 17:00 hours of 14th September,2020,after this period the event will be 
no longer available for casting votes by “E-Voting “ mechanism . 

 

12. Members are requested to intimate immediately any change in their address or other 
mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. The Company or its Registrar and Transfer Agent cannot change mandates for 
shares in electronic form. 

 
13. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change of address 

or bank mandates immediately to the Company / Registrar and Transfer Agent, Skyline 
Financial Services Pvt Limited. 

 
14. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market.Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 

 
15. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company 

/ Registrar and Transfer Agent. 
 

16. Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised to make 
nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company.  

 
17. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint 

holding in the same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, for consolidation into a single folio. 

 
18. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register 

their e-mail address so that they can receive the Annual Report and other communication 
from the Company electronically. 

 

19. Mr. Vijay Kaul , Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.2719), Proprietor - M/s. 
Vijay Kaul and Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner and he has 
communicated his willingness to be appointed and will be available for same purpose.  

 
20. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the annual general 

meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast 
through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment 
of the Company and make, not later than three days on conclusion of the annual general 
meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if 
any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the 
same. 
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21. As per Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the results of e-voting are to be communicated to the BSE Limited, 
where the equity shares of the Company are listed, within 48 hours of the conclusion of 
the Annual General Meeting. The results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer's Report 
shall be placed on the Company's website www.wellesleycorp.com and on the website of 
NSDL.  

 

22. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be 
passed on the date of the Meeting, 15th September,2020 

 
23. In respect of the information to be provided under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, pertaining to the Directors 
being appointed, Members are requested to kindly refer to the chapter on Corporate 
Governance in the Annual Report.  

 
24. The route map of the venue of the Meeting is attached at the end of the Annual Report. 

 

25. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register 
their e-mail address with their DP in case shares are held in electronic form or with the 
Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent - SLFSPL in case shares are held in physical form 
so that they can receive the Annual Report and other communication from the Company 
electronically. 

 

26. The Members desiring any information as regards to accounts are requested to write to 
the Company at an early date, so as to enable the Company to keep information ready. 

 

27. As a measure of economy, copies of Annual Report will not be distributed at the Meeting. 
Members are therefore requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting 

 

28. Members may please note that no gifts will be distributed at the Meeting. 
 

29. The Registers maintained pursuant to the provisions of Sections 170 & 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder will be made available for inspection by 
Members of the Company at the Meeting. 
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Details of the Director seeking re-apointment in the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015: 

 

Name of Director Mrs. Sadhana Rai 

Age(Years) 65 

Brief Resume/Nature of Expertise in 
functional areas 

She has done her graduation from 
University of Calcutta. She is a business 
women and has been into the business 
of Hotels and Resorts and Real Estate 
since 1993. She has more than 25 years of 
experience of managing the business.She 
is also a philanthropist and has 
undertaken various projects for 
underprivileged children.         

Relationships between directors inter-
se 

None 

Directorships held in other Companies 
(excluding foreign companies, private 
companies and companies registered 
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 
2013) 

1) M/s Gokul Dealers Private Limited 
2) M/s Windsor Infrastructure Limited 

Memberships/ Chairmanships of 
committees of other public companies. 

NIL 

Shareholding (No. of shares) 1,00,00,000 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
To, 
The Members, 
Wellesley Corporation Limited 

 
Your Directors are pleased to present the 29thAnnual Report together with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 
  
I-FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  

The highlights of the financial results of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31,2020 are as under:-  
    (Figures in Rupees) 

                      Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31st March,2020 31stMarch,2019 

Revenue from Operations 8,75,000 29,66,700 

Other Income 34,529 78,368 

Total Revenue 9,09,529 30,45,068 

Total Expenses 21,92,858 38,09,904 

Profit /loss before Tax Expense (12,83,329) (7,64,836) 

Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) (3,18,296) (51,481) 

Profit /loss for the year (9,65,033) (7,13,354) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (9,05,919) (7,68,188) 

Shareholders Fund 1,27,01,900 1,36,07,819 

 
II-REVIEW OF OPERATIONS & BUSINESS UPDATE 
 
KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Your company has recorded revenue of Rs 9.09 Lacs in financial year 2019-20 as compared to 
Rs 30.45 lacsin financial year 2018-19.The Company has incurred a net loss of Rs 9.05 Lacs  as 
compared to net lossof Rs 7.68 lacs recorded in the last financial year. 
 
Since the company has incurred net loss during the year, , no amount is carried to 
reserves.There was no change in the nature of business of the company  
 
III-FUTURE OUTLOOK 

In the era of this COVID-19 the future is altogether uncertain ,how the global economic will g 
o and how the Indian economy will progress is really a matter of time. This will really 
hamper the projections of the company to perform well in Hotel business  
 
IV-DIVIDEND 

In view of current year losses and accumulated losses, the Directors do not recommend any 
dividend during the year. 
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V-PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

Your Company had not accepted any Public Deposits under Chapter V of the Act 
 
VI-CHANGES IN DIRECTORS & KMP 
 
Mr.Saurabh Kedia (Independent Director) 
During the year Mrs. Saurabh Kedia  (DIN: 02476376) was appointed as an additional 
director on 06.07.2019 and further ratified as director by the shareholders in the 28th Annual 
General Meeting of the company held on 28.08.2019 
 
During the year Mr Deepak Jalan (DIN :01610473 )has vacated his office as Independednt 
Director on20.07.2019.on completion of his tenure of independent director (Two tenures of  5 
years each) as per section 149(10) and 149(11) of the Act 
 
During the year Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia(DIN:00480125 ) was reappointed for his second 
tenure of five years as Independent Director w.e.f 20.07.2019 
 
Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-appointment 
 

Mrs. Sadhana Rai, Non-Executive Director, is liableto retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM, 
pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any,of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in 
force), the Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible has offered herself for 
re-appointment.Appropriate resolution for her re-appointment is being placed for the 
approval of the Members of the Company at the ensuing AGM. The brief resume of the 
Director and other related information has been detailed in the Notice convening the 29th 
AGM of theCompany. The Board recommends her re-appointment as Non - Executive 
Director of the Company. 
 
VII-MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(e), of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations& Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations,2015, read with Schedule-V is presented in a separate section forming part of the 
Annual Report. 
 
VIII-CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

In terms of Regulation 34 of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Report on Corporate Governance along with 
Compliance Certificate issued by Statutory Auditor’s of the Company is attached as 
Annexure- 1 and forms integral part of this Report (hereinafter “Corporate Governance 
Report”). 
 
IX-AUDITORS  

 
A-1 STATUTORY AUDITORS  

In terms of the provisons of Section 139 of the Companies Act,2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 as amended vide the Companies (Amendment) Act,2017 
and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules,2018 respectively , M/s M.K 
Jain &Co , Chartered Accountants ,( (ICAI Firm Regn No:009694N), the auditors of the 
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Company, hold office for a consecutive period of five years until the conclusion Thirty First 
(31st ) Annual General Meeting of the company to be held for the financial year 2021-22 and 
their appointment is not required to be ratified each year at Annual General Meeting of the 
Company .The Auditors have confirmed to the company that they continue to remain 
eligible to hold office as the Auditors and not disqualified for being so appointed under the 
Companies Act,2013, the Chartered Accountants Act,1949 and the rules and regulations 
made thereunder. 
 
A-2 AUDITORS REPORT 

The Report given by the statutory auditors for the financial year 2019-20 on the financial 
statement of the Company is part of the Annual Report. There has been no qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in their Report.  
 
B-SECRETARIAL AUDITORS  
 

The Secretarial Audit was carried out by M/s. Vijay Kaul & Co., Company Secretaries (PCS 
Registration No. 4722) for the financial year 2019-20. The Report given by the Secretarial 
Auditors is annexed as Annexure – 3and forms an integral part of this Report.Explanations 
to their qualifications are as under: 

 
1. There was a gap of 127 days between two Board Meetings during the year under 

review. This was taken note of in the Board Meeting held on 11.11.2019 and Mr. 
Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia, chairing the said meeting, apprised the Board Members that 
the meeting was being conducted after 127 days due to unavailability of one or other 
member(s) of the Board. To this extent, there is a non-compliance of Section 173(1) 
of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 17(2) SEBI (LODR), 2015, as amended 
from time to time. 
 

2. CS/CFO-The Company’s financial conditions do not allow keepingtwo separate 
persons for the post of CS &amp; CFO. Mr Sumeer Narain Mathur is a qualified 
Company Secretary and MBA-Finance with vast experience in handling accounts, 
finance &amp;taxation at senior level apart from handling the company law matters 
.Therefore Board found him suitable to hold the position of CFO in addition to the 
post of CS, in compliance of the requirements u/s 203 of the Companies Act,2013. 
 

3. BSE vide its notification dated 23 rd February, 2017 has placed the securities of the 
company (Script Code/Symbol: 532016/Wellesley)into Graded Surveillance Measure 
(GSM) at its stage -0. Since then neither the securities were removed from the 
surveillance nor has the same been moved to any other stage of GSM. Further the 
company has not received any clarification/query from Bombay Stock Exchange or 
SEBI with regard to trading of our securities at BSE. 
 

C-FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143 (12) 

During the year under review, the Auditors has not reported any fraud under Section 143 
(12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134 sub section 
3(ca) of the Act. 
 
 
 

9



 
   Annual Report 2019-20 
 
 
X-PARTICUALARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 
186. 

The company has neither granted nor provided any guarantee or made investment attracting 
the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
XI-MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY  

The outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic has significantly impacted business around the world . 
The Government of India ordered a nationwide lockdown ,initially for 21 days which further 
got extended four times and now from 1st  June  the Unlock process is being started .This 
lockdown adversely hamper the blooming seasons for Hotel Business during the period of 
April-June. 
 
XII-INFORMATION PURSUANT TO RULE 8 OF CHAPTER IX OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013 
 
A)CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

In absence of any manufacturing activities, no details have been given as required under 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.  
 
B) TECHNOLOGY AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING ETC 

In absence of any manufacturing activities, no details have been given as required under 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.  
 
C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO 

There was no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year. 
 
XIII-DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5)of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to 
the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed: 
 

a. That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards 
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures., 

 

b. That the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the 
financial year and of the loss of the company for that period., 
 

c. That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities., 

 
d. That the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended   

March 31, 2020on a going concern basis., and 
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e. That the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively., 

 
f. That the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating 
effectively. 

 
 
XIV-INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

In pursuance of section 149 (7) of the Companies Act 2013, all the Independent Directors 
have given the declaration of their independence complying with the criteria as prescribed in 
section 149(6) and has been taken on record. 
 
XV-POLICY ON DIRECTORS, KMP& OTHER EMPLOYEES APPOINTMENT  

The company has already having a nomination and remuneration committee to take care of 
the appointment of Directors, KMP & other employees and determining their 
qualifications,attributes ,independence etc. 
 
XVI-DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY  

The board has laid down a committee of risk management comprising three independent 
directors to lead the same and to manage the risk involved in the business of the company. 
 
XVII-DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A POLICY ON CORPORATE 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY. 

The directors are of the view that at present the company doesn’t fall in the category of the 
specified companies abide by the CSR regulations. 
 
XVIII-DETAILS OF TRAINING IMPARTED TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

There has been no specific training programs conducted by the board of directors for the 
Independent Directors, however sufficient information about the company’s business were 
provided to them in the board meetings itself 
 
XIX-DETAILS OF VIGIL MECHANISM 

The company has laid down its vigil mechanism called “Whistle Blower Policy“for directors 
and employees to  report to the management instances of unethical behavior, actual or 
suspected, fraud or violation of the company’s code of conduct or ethics policy.This 
mechanism also has provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee 
Mr. Saurabh Kedia in appropriate or exceptional cases. 
 
XX-EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL 
DIRECTORS  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued 
thereunder, Regulation 17(10) of the Listing Regulations and the circular issued by SEBI 
dated 5th January, 2017 with respect to Guidance Note on Board Evaluation, the evaluation 
of the annual performance of the Directors/Board/Committees was carried out for the 
financial year 2019-20.The details of the evaluation process are set out in the Corporate 
Governance Report which forms a part of this report. 
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XXI-INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
READ WITH RULE 4 & 5 OF THE COMPANIES APPOINTMENT & REMUNARATION 
OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL RULES 2014 

A detailed disclosure of the information as required is attached herewith in the board report 
as Annexure: 3.  

 
XXII-EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN  

Extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9, as stipulated under section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, is annexed at the end of the Board Report as Annexure: 4. 
 
XXIII-DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES 
ENTERED/CEASEDDURING THE YEAR  

The Company has no Joint Venture Agreement, Subsidiary or Associate during the year . 
 
XXIV-DETAILS OF BOARD MEETINGS  

During the year, Six meetings of Board, four meetings of the Audit Committee, four 
meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee,and two meetings of 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee were convened and held. One meeting of 
Independent directors was also held. The details are covered in the Corporate 
Governance report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
XXV PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES REFERRED IN SUB SECTION 188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013. 

The details are mentioned in form AOC-2 and annexed with this board report as Annexure: 5 
 

XXVI- COST RECORDS 

The provision for maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central 
Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable on the Company. 
 

XXVII-SEXUAL HARASSMENT  
Your Company has adopted a policy for the prevention of sexual harassment of women at 
work place and has set up a committee for implementation of said policy. During the period 
the Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment. 
 

XXVIII- SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
The company has complied with the provisions of applicable Secretarial Standards issued by 
The Institute of Companies Secretary (ICSI). 
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XXIX-APPRECIATION  
Your Directors desires to place on record their appreciation of the support extended by its 
employees, Bankers, Customers and various Government Agencies, who through their 
continued support and cooperation helped in the Company’s progress. The Board also 
wishes to thank the shareholders for their continuous support and acknowledge the hard 
work, dedication and commitment of the employees. 

 
     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

   
  Director:Vishnu Gopal Rajrahia 
  Din:00480125 

Address:C-740, New Friends Colony, New Delhi-110065 
 

 
New Delhi    Managing Director: Gyanendra Prakash 
Date:27th June,2020   Din:01444823 
     Address: House no:749, Sector-15, Vasundhara, 

    Ghaziabad-201012 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



 
   Annual Report 2019-20 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

The management of Wellesley Corporation Limited is pleased to present its analysis report 
on the performance and future outlook of your company . 
 
Industry structure & developments  

F.Y 2019-20 An unprecedented Roller-Coaster Year for the Industry  
 

The year 2019-20 starts with a more strengthen and smooth manner because of the reforms 
intruducted by the government in recent years, however India entered into 2020 with lower 
growth projections on the economic fronts led by global economic slowdown and now the 
COVID-19 , the unprecedented crisis casued by the global pandemic , impacted the lived of 
human beings.Around 90.00 Lacs people are suffered from this pendemic accorss the world. 
 
The business worldwide have been heighly impacted by the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic 
which has resulted in significant reduction in economic activities across all sectors , however 
impacted the Hotel Industry and Real Estate sector the worst .  
 
When people have losts their jobs, their lives their near and dears who can think about going 
for a vacation or to buy a property. 
 
The company business also suffered as the company has been providing 
maintenance/consultancy services to hotel industries however as since hotels/tours  
business  suffered most serviving in this situatation is really a matter of great luck and 
chance.   
 
Opportunities & Threats 

Opportunities 

Vatious measures taken by the Government of India may englight some opportunities in 
near future  
 
Threats 

Despite going in this COVID-19 period for more than 3 months the number of cases of COID-
19 patients are increasing day by day which further hamper the purchasing power of the 
human beings  

Outlook 

 
Global pandemic COVID 19 has derailed your company’s plan to enter into hotel business. 
Your company is facing dire state of financials due to shortage of capital which is stuck in 
litigation. Management of your comoany is not very positive on the real estate business in 
near future due to this unprecedented unforeseen circumstances. Management of your 
company is now focusing to remain afloat anyhow during the FY 2020-21 so that it can 
explore opportunity in hotel industry and real estate management services.  
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Risk & Concerns  

Global pandemic COVID 19 has posed considerable risk to your company which was already 
facing liquidity crunch due to long pending litigations with respect to its advances given for 
acquiring land / joind development agreements.  

Segment –wise or product wise performance 

There is no reportable segment as per Ind AS-108, as during the year under report the 
company undertakes its business activities only in “Real Estate & Services ” therefore no 
segment wise disclosures are required.  
 
Internal Control Systems & their adequacy  

 
The company has placed adequate and effective system of internal controls, which are wisely 
commensurate with the nature of business and its scale of operations. Reviews of the audit 
plans, significant audit findings, adequacy of internal controls, compliance with accounting 
standards including any changes in that is a regular course of action of the company’s Audit 
committee. The Statutory Auditors of the Company have also, in their report to members for 
the financial year ended on 31st March 2020, confirmed the adequacy of internal control 
system of the Company. 
 

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance  
 

The Financial Statement for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 have been prepared 
in compliance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Indian 
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(Ind AS). The 
Board of Directors accepts the integrity and objectives of these financial statements.  

Your company has recorded revenue of Rs 9.09lacs in financial year 2019-20 as compared to 
Rs 30.45 lacs in financial year 2018-19.The Company has incurred a net loss of Rs 9.05 Lacs  as  
compared to net loss of Rs 7.68 lacs recorded in the last financial year. 
 
Material Development in Human Resources  
 

The company recognizes the fact that manpower is the most vital resource for any business. . 
The company has been trying its best to provided employee friendly working environment 
with attractive remunerations.. However, going forward company may face challenge in this 
area.  

      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
   
   Director:Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia 
   Din:00480125 

Address:C-740, New Friends Colony, New  
Delhi-110065  

New Delhi     Managing Director:Gyanendra Prakash 
Date:27nd June,2020    Din:01444823 
      Address: House no:749, Sector-5, Vasundhara,  
      Ghaziabad-201012 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT                                                                                 
 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 
 

The corporate governance policy of Wellesley Corporation Limited (WCL) encompasses the 
simple tenets of integrity, transparency and fairness in whatever the company does and what 
it basically aims at achieving is a complete adherence to the applicable statutes while at the 
same time ensuring a complete commitment to values and the highest ethical standards in 
every facet of its operations and in each of the functional areas. This, in turn, ensures that 
best in the class concept of corporate governance practices become a way of life in the 
Company. 

In line with the nature and size of operations of the Company, the Corporate Governance 
framework in WCL is based on the following main principles: 

 

 Constitution of a Board of Directors of appropriate composition, size, varied 
experience and commitment to discharge their responsibilities and duties. 

 Transparency and independence in the functions of the Board. 

 Ensuring timely flow of information to the Board and its Committees to enable them 
discharge their functions effectively. 

 Independent verification and assured integrity of financial reporting. Timely and 
balanced disclosure of all material information related to the Company to all 
stakeholders and protection of their rights and interests. 

 A sound system of risk management and internal control. 

 Compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations in letter and spirit 
 
 
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 
(A)Composition &category of the Board 

 
The Board of Directors in WCL has been constituted in a manner which ensures appropriate 
mix of executive, non-executive and independent directors to ensure proper governance and 
management. The Board members have collective experience in diverse fields like 
construction, finance, architecture, human resources & hospitality. 
 

As on March 31, 2020, the Board consist five directors, 04of them are non executive&one 
executive. Out of five directors,one director is promoter director, three Directors are 
Independent Directors and one ManagingDirector. The details of various directors on the 
Board of the Company, the nature of theirdirectorships, the number of directorships held by 
them in other companies and also the number of committee memberships or chairmanships 
held by them in other companies (including the company )as on March 31, 2020, is depicted 
in the table given below 
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Sl. 
No  

Name of the Director Category of Directorship No of  
Directorshi
ps in other  
companies 

No of 
Memberships/chairmanships 
in Board /committees of 
various companies 
(including theCompany) 
 

Member Chairman 

1. Mr. Gyanendra 
Prakash*** 

Executive Director  
(Managing Director) 

3 0 0 

2. Mr. Deepak Jalan* 
 

Non Executive  
Independent Director 

2 5 0 

3. Mr.Vishnu Gopal  
Rajgarhia 

Non Executive  
Independent Director 

5 5 0 

4. Mr. Piyush Prakash 
 

Non Executive  
Independent Director 

2 5 0 

5. Mrs. Sadhana Rai Non Executive 
Non Independent , 
Promoter Director 

2 0 0 

6 Mr. Saurabh Kedia** Non Executive  
Independent Director 

6 5 5 

*Vacation of office  w.e.f 06.07.2019 

** Appointed  w.e.f 20.07.2019 

*** Resigned w.e.f 27.06.2020 

None of the directors are holding any directorship or committee membership in any listed 
entity. 
 
(B) Details of Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting and attendance record 
of Directors thereat 

During the FY 2019-20 the Board of WCL met 4 (Four) times. The dates of the Board 

meetings were 29th May,2019, 06th July,2019, 11th November,2019, 13th February,2020. Due 

to COVID-19 the scheduled meeting in the last week of March,2020 could not be convened 

was , however as per the advisory of the regulators the independent directors have 

discussed the necessary business  

 
The last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held on 28thAugust,2019.  
 
A table depicting the attendance of Directors at various Board Meetings and the AGM held 
during financial year 2019-20 

 
S.No Name of the Director No of Board 

MeetingAttended 
 

Attendance at the 
last AGM 

1. Mr. Gyanendra Prakash **** 3 Yes 
2. Mr. Deepak Jalan* 2 No 
3. Mr. Piyush Prakash*** 3 No 
4. Mr.Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia 4 Yes  
5. Mrs Sadhana Rai 4 Yes 
6. Mr. Saurabh Kedia** 2 Yes 
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*Vacation of office w.e.f 20th July,2019 
**Appointed w.e.f 06th July,2019 
*** Resigned w.e.f 18th June,2020 
**** Resigned w.e.f 27th June,2020 
 
(c) Disclosure of relationship between director’s inter-se:- 

The board consists of a Managing Director, a non-executive promoter director and three 
independent directors ,there in no inter-se relation exists between any of them. 
 
(d)Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors:- 

The non executive promoter director Mrs. Sadhana Rai holds 74.07% (1,00,00,000 Shares ) of 
the share capital of the company & none of the other non-executive directors held any shares 
or convertible instruments of the company. 
 
(e)Website link where the details of familiarization programs imparted to independent 
directors is disclosed 

There has been no specific training programs conducted by the board of directors for the 
Independent Directors, however sufficient information about the company’s business, 
changes in regulatory framework, updates by SEBI/BSE/MCA and other regulatory 
authorities were  provided to them in the board meetings itself time to time. 
 
(f) Considering the business and sector of the company ,the Board of director of the company 
are having sufficient skills, good expertise and are competent enough to manage the 
functions of the company effectively . 
 

(g) In the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified 
in these regulations and are independent of the management. 
 
(h)During the year under report none of the independent director has resigned from the 
board of the company .  
 
3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

The Board constituted committees namely, Audit Committee, Nomination &Remuneration 
Committee,Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committee& 
Committee of Directors  to act in accordance with the terms of reference determined by the 
Board. Meetings of each of these Committees are convened by the respective Chairman. 
Matters requiring Board’s attention/approval are placed before the Board. The role, the 
composition of these Committees including the number of meetings held during the financial 
year 2019-20 and the related attendance detail are provided hereunder. 
 
(A) Audit Committee 

The composition of the Audit Committee is in alignment with provisions of Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 18 of the 
Listing Regulations. The members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have 
experience in financial management. 
 
During the financial year 2019-20, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times. The dates of the 
Board meetings were 29th May,2019, 06th July,2019, 11th November,2019, 13th February,2020. 
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The composition of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company along 
with the details of the meetings held and attended during the financial year ended March 31, 
2020 is detailed below: 
 

Name of Member Designation No of Meeting held No of Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia Chairman 4 3 

Mr. Deepak Jalan* Member 2 2 

Mr. Piyush Prakash*** Member 4 3 

Mr. Saurabh Kedia** Chairman 2 2 

 
*Vacation of office w.e.f 20th July,2019 
**Appointed w.e.f 06th July,2019 
*** Resigned w.e.f 18th June,2020 
 
Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary& Chief Financial Officer, acts as the 
Secretary to the Audit Committee.  
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter-alia, include: 
1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financialinformation to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 
credible; 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of 
auditors of the company; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors; 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor'sreport 
thereon before submission to the board for approval with particular reference to :- 

a. matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be 
included in the board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

b. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
c. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 

judgment by management; 
d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 

findings; 
e. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements; 
f. disclosure of any related party transactions; 
g. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;. 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the board for approval; 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of 
funds utilized forpurposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus 
/ notice and the reportsubmitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation 
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of proceeds of a public or rightsissue, and making appropriate recommendations to 
the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness 
of auditprocess; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related 
parties;Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 

adequacy of theinternal control systems;Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit 
function, if any, including the structure of the internalaudit department, staffing and 
seniority of the official  

13. Heading the department, reporting structurecoverage and frequency of internal 
audit; 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 
15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 

matters wherethere is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material natureand reporting the matter to the board; 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 
scope ofaudit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debentureholders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 
creditors; 

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 
19. Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the qualifications,experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate; 
 
(B) Nomination &Remuneration Committee 
 

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is governed by its Charter and its 
composition is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of 
the Listing Regulations. 
 
During the financial year, the committee was met on 29th May,2019. 
 
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors 
of the Company along with the details of the meetings held and attended by the members of 
the Committee during the financial year 2019-20 is detailed below: 
 

Name of Member Designation No of Meeting 
Held 

No of Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Deepak Jalan* Chariman 1 1 

Mr. Piyush Prakash*** Member 1 1 

Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia Member 1 1 

Mr. Saurabh Kedia** Chairman 0 0 

 
*Vacation of office w.e.f 20th July,2019 
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**Appointed w.e.f 06th July,2019 
*** Resigned w.e.f 18th June,2020 
 
Mr.SumeerNarain Mathur,Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary to the Nomination 
&Remuneration committee.  
 
 
Terms of reference 

The terms of reference of Nomination &Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, include: 
1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

Independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the 
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. 

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 
3. Devising a policy on Board diversity. 
4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed 

insenior management in accordance with the criteria lay down, and recommend to 
theBoard their appointment and removal.  

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, 
on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 
 

I-Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management   
 
1. Appointment criteria and qualifications  
 

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and 
experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level 
and recommend to the Board for his/her appointment.  
 
b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position 
he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether 
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for 
the concerned position.  
 
2. Term / Tenure  
a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director:  
 
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing 
Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-
appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.  
 
b) Independent Director:  
 

- An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on 
the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a 
special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's 
report.  

- No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of five 
years each, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for Appointment after 
expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an 
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Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in 
or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.  

- At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that 
number of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven 
listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an 
Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a 
listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.  
 

3. Removal  
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable 
Act, rules and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with 
reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel 
subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.  
 
4. Retirement  
The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable 
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board has the discretion 
to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ 
remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the 
Company. 
 
5 Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel:  
 
a) Fixed pay:  

 
The Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a 
monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of 
perquisites including, employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, etc. 
shall be decided and approved by the Board/ the Person authorized by the Board on the 
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved by the 
shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.  
 
b) Minimum Remuneration:  

 
If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the 
Company shall pay remuneration to its Managing Director in accordance with the provisions 
of Schedule V of the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the 
previous approval of the Central Government.  
 
 
c) Provisions for excess remuneration:  

 
If any Managing Director /Whole Time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by 
way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or 
without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund 
such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company.  
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The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the 
Central Government.  
 
6 Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:  
 
a) Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by 
 way of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof.  
 
b) Stock Option: Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the 
 Company. 
 
7 Details of Directors’ Remuneration 

 
(i) Remuneration of Executive Director  

     The table given below specifies the details of remuneration package of Executive 
 Directorsand their relationship with other Directors on the Board: 
        (Rupees per Annum) 
Name of the Director Relationship 

with other 
directors 

Salary & 
 Allowances 

Monitory 
 Value of 
Perquisites 

Total 

Mr. Gyanendra Prakash  None 2,40,000 Nil 2,40,000 

 
Notes: 

1. Components of the salary includes the Basic salary, House rent allowance as perthe 
Company rules. 
2. The terms and conditions of service of Executive Directors are contractual in natureand 
 are governed by applicable rules and policy of the Company. 
3. All the components of salary are fixed in nature and there is no variablecomponent. 
4. There are no stock option has been given/exercise by the Executive directors.  
 
(ii) Remuneration of Non-Executive Independent Directors  

Non-Executive Independent Directors have been paid only sitting fees during the 
financial year 2019-20 as mentioned in their terms of appointment placed on the website 
 of the company . 
 
II-Board Level Performance Evaluation  

Listing Regulations mandate the Board of listed companies to monitor and review the Board 
Evaluation framework. The Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder 
further provides that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own 
performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors. The Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder states that the performance 
evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, 
excluding the Director being evaluated. After taking into consideration the Guidance Note 
on Performance Evaluation of Board dated 5thJanuary, 2017 published by SEBI, controlled  
evaluations forms were finalized to evaluate the performance of the Board, Committees of 
the Board and individual performance of each Director including the Chairman. 
 
The process for performance evaluation is as under:- 
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 Committee of Independent Directors evaluates the performance of Non Independent 
Directors and the Board as a whole and submits its report to the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee. 

 The Board evaluates the performance of Independent Directors and submits its report 
to the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.  

 Nomination & Remuneration committee reviews the report of the Committee of 
Independent Directors and Board and accordingly recommends the appointment/re-
appointment /continuation of Directors to the Board. 

 
The criteria for performance evaluation are as under:- 

 
The Directors are evaluated based on various aspects which, amongst other parameters, 
included qualifications, experience, knowledge and competency, ability to function as a 
team, fulfillment of functions ,the level of participation of the Directors, etc. 
 
The parameters for performance evaluation of Board includes structure of the Board, 
competency of directors, experience of directors, mix of qualifications, diversity and the 
process of appointment to the Board of directors, role & responsibilities, strategy & 
performance evaluation, governance and compliances, evaluation of risks corporate culture 
,grievances redressal for investors etc. 
 
Some of the performance indicators for the Committees include regularity of meeting, 
logistics, agenda items, discussion & dissent, recording of minutes & dissemination of 
Information. 
 
The Committee ensures that the Key Performance Objectives are aligned with the immediate 
and long term goals of the Company. 
 
The performance of the Independent Directors was also evaluated taking into account their 
independent views and judgements in addition to the points on which non-independent 
directors are evaluated. 
 
(C) Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 
The composition of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee is in compliance with the 
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder 
and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations  
 

During the financial year 2019-20, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee of Directors 
met four times. The dates of the meetings being 29th May,2019, 06th July,2019, 13th 

November,2019, 13th February, 2020  

 
The constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors of the 
Company along with the details of the meetings held and attended by the members of the 
Committee during the financial year 2019-20 is detailed below: 
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Name of Member Designation No of Meetings 
held 

No of 
Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia  Member 4 4 

Mr. Deepak Jalan* Member 2 2 

Mr. Piyush Prakash*** Member 4 3 

Mr. Saurabh Kedia** Chairman 2 2 

 
Vacation of office w.e.f 20th July,2019 
**Appointed w.e.f 06th July,2019 
*** Resigned w.e.f 18th June,2020 
 
Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary& Chief Financial Officer, acts as the 
Secretary to the Stakeholders Grievance Committee. 
 
Name and designation of Compliance Officer& Chief Financial Officer 

Mr.Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary& Chief Financial officer, is the Compliance 
Officer pursuant to regulation 6(1) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015 . 
 
During the year under report there was no shareholder complaint was received and 
resolved. 

 
(D) Committee of Directors  
 
The constitution of the Committee of Directors of the Company along with the details of the 
meetings held and attended by the members of the Committee during the financial year 
2019-20is detailed below: 
 

Name of Member Designation No of Meetings 
Held 

No of Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia  Member NIL NIL 

Mr. Deepak Jalan* Member NIL NIL 

Mr. Piyush Prakash*** Member NIL NIL 

Mr. Saurabh Kedia** Chairman NIL NIL 

 
*Vacation of office w.e.f 20th July,2019 
**Appointed w.e.f 06th July,2019 
*** Resigned w.e.f 18th June,2020 
 
Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary& Chief Financial Officer, acts as the 
Secretary to the Committee of Directors. 
 
Terms of Reference 

The main term of reference is to approve the share transfers/split/renewal of old certificates, 
however the same has been delegated to Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary of 
the company for effective implementation of transfer/split/demat/remat process and 
compliance of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,2015 . 
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(E) Risk Management Committee  

The Board of Directors has constituted a Risk Management Committee and defined its roles 
and responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 21 of the Listing 
Regulations. 
 
The composition of the Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors of the 
Company along with the details of the meetings held and attended by the members of the 
Committee during the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 is detailed below: 
 
 

Name of Member Designation No of Meetings 
Held 

No of Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia  Member NIL NIL 

Mr. Deepak Jalan* Member NIL NIL 

Mr. Piyush Prakash*** Member NIL NIL 

Mr. Saurabh Kedia** Chairman NIL NIL 

 
*Vacation of office w.e.f 20th July,2019 
**Appointed w.e.f 06th July,2019 
*** Resigned w.e.f 18th June,2020 
 
Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary& Chief Financial officer, acts as the 
Secretary to the Risk Management Committee. 
 
Terms of Reference 

1. Oversee and approve the risk management, internal compliance and control policies 
and procedures of the Company (including reporting and internal audit systems), in 
concurrence with existing business processes and systems, to manage the Company’s 
material business risks 

 
2. Establish policies for the monitoring and evaluation of risk management systems to 

assess the effectiveness of those systems in minimizing risks that may impact 
adversely on the business objectives of the Company. 

 
3. Be aware and concur with the Company’s Risk Appetite including risk levels, if any, 

set for financial and operational risks. 
 

4. Ensure that the Company is taking appropriate measures to achieve prudent balance 
between risk and reward in both ongoing and new business activities. 
 

5. Review the existing risk Management System of the Company in view of the 
Company’s Risk Appetite. 
 

6. Coordinate its activities with the Audit Committee in instances where there is any 
overlap with audit activities. For example, internal or external audit issue relating to 
risk management policy or practice. 
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7. Provide guidance to the Board on making the Company’s risk management policies 
and procedures publicly available and, if appropriate, liaise with the Company 
Secretary on announcements to the market where material business risks or changes 
to those risks are likely to have a material impact on the price or value of the 
Company’s securities. 

 
8. Perform such other activities related to this Memorandum as requested by the Board 

of Directors. 
 

(F)  Independent Directors 

 
DuringtheyearunderreporttheIndependentDirectors could not met as the scheduled 

meeting in the last week of the March,2020 could not be convened due to COVID-

19,however independent directors have discussed the matters of their concern 

amoung themselves 

 
Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary & Chief Financial officer, acts as the 
Secretary for the meeting of Independent Directors. 
 
Terms of Reference 

In compliance to regulation 25 (4) of the listing regulations the terms of reference of the 
Independent Directors are:-  
 

a) Review the performance of non-independent directors and the board as a whole. 
b) Review the performance of the chairperson of the company, taking into account the 

views of executive directors and non-executive directors. 
c) Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 

company management & the board. 
 
Based on the evaluation criteria laid down by the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee for the non executive directors, the Managing Directors & the Board as a 
whole has been evaluated and a report thereon has been submitted to the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee for their reference and further recommended for 
reappointments if any. 
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4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 
(A)Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings were held:- 
Financial Year 
(ended) 

Venue Date Time 

March,31,2017 Country Inn Hotel & Resorts,  
Mehragoan Bhimtal-249179, 
Uttarakhand. 

08.09.2017 10:00 A.M 

March,31,2018 Country Inn Hotel & Resorts, Mehragoan  
Bhimtal-249179, Uttarakhand. 

08.09.2018 10:00 A.M 

March,31,2019 Country Inn Hotel & Resorts, Mehragoan  
Bhimtal-249179, Uttarakhand. 

28.08.2019 10:00 A.M 

 
 
(B)Details of Special Resolution passed in previous three AGMs 
Sr 
No 
 

AGM 
Number  

Date of AGM Matter Cover by special resolution 

 
1. 

 
28th 
AGM 

 
August,28th,2019 Special Resolution according  consent  to appoint Mr 

Vishnu Gopal Rajgrhia Prakash (DIN:00480125) as the 
Independent Director of the company after the 
completion of first term of 5 years for another term of 
5 years . 

 
(C)Postal Ballot  

 
(i) Special resolutions passed through Postal Ballot during the f.y 2019-20 

 
During the financial year 2019-20, there was no resolution passed through Postal Ballot 
 
(ii) Procedure for Postal Ballot 

 
For conducting a postal ballot, notice specifying the resolutions proposed to be passed 
through postal ballot as also the relevant explanatory statement and the postal ballot forms, 
are dispatched to all the shareholders along with self addressed postage pre-paid envelope.  
 

The shareholders are requested to send back the postal ballot forms duly filled up and 
signed, in the postage pre-paid envelopes provided to them by the Company, so as to reach 
the Scrutinizer (in whose name the envelopes are marked) on or before the 30th day from the 
date of issue of notice by the company. The Scrutinizer compiles the postal ballot result out 
of the postal ballot forms found valid and hands over the results to the Managing Director. 
The Chairman thereupon declares the result of the postal ballot and the same is displayed on 
a notice board at the corporate office of the Company. 
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5. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
(i) Quarterly Results:  

The quarterly/annual financial results of the Company are intimated to the Bombay Stock 
Exchange wherein the company is listed,within the prescribed time period my means of 
uploading the same on the listing portal i.e www.listing.bseindia.com a CFDS prescribed by 
the Bombay Stock Exchange. 
 
(ii) News, Release etc.:  

The quarterly /annual results are usually published in the leading newspapers viz; Financial 
Express and regional news paper, Rozana/ Rashtriya Saharaof the place of the registered 
office of the company. 
 
(iii)Website:  

The Company has its own website www.wellesleycorp.com,and all vital information relating 
to the Company and its performance including financial results are regularly posted on the 
website. 
 
6.GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 
(a)Date,Time and Venue of AGM 

DATE:15th September,2020 

TIME:10:00 AM 

VENUE: Country Inn Hotels & Resorts, Mehragaon,Bhimtal,Uttarakhand-248179 

 
(b)Date of book closure: From12th September,2020 to 17th September,2020. 

 
(c)Dividend Payment date 

No dividend is declared during the financial year. 
 
(d)Listing on stock Exchanges  

 
Stock Exchange Stock Code ISIN 

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 532106 INE176O01011 

 
Listing fees to Bombay Stock Exchange has been paid for the financial year 2019-20. 
 
(e) Stock Code/ ISIN: 

BSE:532016/ ISIN:INE176O01011 
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(f)Stock market price at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 
 

MONTH High(Rupees) Low (Rupees) Volume 

APRIL N.A N.A NIL 
MAY N.A N.A NIL 
JUNE N.A N.A NIL 
JULY 7.00 7.00 400 
AUG N.A N.A NIL 
SEPT N.A N.A NIL 
OCT 7.00 7.00                01 
NOV N.A N.A NIL 
DEC N.A N.A NIL 
JAN 7.00 7.00 30 
FEB N.A N.A NIL 

MARCH N.A N.A NIL 
 
(h)Performance Comparison to broad bases indices BSE Sensex. 
 

 
 
 
(i)Registrar & Transfer Agent 

M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 
(Unit- Wellesley Corporation Limited) 
D-153A, Ist Floor Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-I, New Delhi – 110 020 
Tel: - +91 – 11 – 2681-2682, 2681-2683 
Fax: - +91 – 11 – 3085 7562 
Email: admin@skylinerta.com 

- - - - - - - - - - - -
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(j) Share Transfer System 
 

All queries pertaining to share transfer / transmission, change of address, bank mandate, 
nomination forms, loss of shares, issue of duplicate shares, Annual Report may be forwarded 
directly to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at the above mentioned address. 
 
(k) Distribution of shareholding as on March 31,2020 

Share or 
Debenture 
holding Nominal 
Value 

Number of 
Shareholders 

% to Total 
Numbers 

Share or 
Debenture 

holding 
Amount 

% to Total 
Amount 

(Rs.)     (Rs.)   

Up  To 5,000 1789 90.67 2349380 1.74 

5001 To 10,000 127 6.44 1171600 0.87 

10001 To 20,000 16 0.81 252500 0.19 

20001 To 30,000 9 0.46 215000 0.16 

30001 To 40,000 3 0.15 10600 0.08 

40001 To 50,000 0 0.00 0 0.00 

50001 To 1,00,000 5 0.25 384000 0.28 

1,00,000 and 
Above 

24 1.22 130525520 96.68 

Total 1,973 100.00 13,50,04,000 100.00 
 
(l) Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity  

 
Equity shares of the company are available in both physical as well in demat mode at both 
the depositories i.e. NSDL & CDSL(ISIN No INE176O01011). As on March 31, 2019, 84.94% 
Equity shares of the Company representing 1,14,71,500 shares out of a total of 1,35,00,400 
Equity shares, were held in dematerialized form and the balance 20,28,900shares were held 
in physical form.Depository fees have been paid to NSDL & CDSL for the financial year 
2019-20. 
 
(m)Outstanding GDR’s /ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date 
and likely impact on equity. 
 

There was no GDR/ADR/Warrants/Convertible instruments were issued and pending for 
conversion. 
 

(n)Address for Investor’s correspondence: 

 

a. Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur  

Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer 

a. Address B- 210, Ansal Chamber – I,Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi – 110066 

b. Phone No. 
Fax No. 

91-11-26184535 
91-11-26193448 

c. Email id investor@wellesleycorp.com 
cs@wellesleycorp.com 
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o)Details of directors seeking appointment or reappointment:-  

 
Mrs Sadhana Rai,Director (DIN:01585720) who was appointed as the director of the company  
at the 28th Annual General Meeting ,is subject to retire by rotation and seeking 
reappointment.  
 
7) DISCLOSURE 
(i)Materially Significant Related Party Transaction 
 

There has been no materially significant related party transaction. 
 
(ii)Details of Non-Compliance by the Company, penalties imposed by Stock Exchange/ 
SEBI/ Any Statutory Authority in any matter related to Capital Market during the last 
three years. 
 

(a) There has been no instance of any non-compliance by the Company on any matter related 
to capital markets, and hence, no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company 
by SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or any other statutory authority on any such matter. 
 

(b)The Company has paid listing fee to Bombay Stock Exchange for the financial year 2019-
20. 

(iii)The company has formulated a “WCL Whistle Blower Policy” headed by the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee Mr.Saurabh Kedia, wherein everyone is at the liberty to raise 
their concern to the chairman. 
 
(iv)The company is following all the mandatory requirements of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements ),Regualtions,2015 and with regards to 
discretionary requirements as mentioned in Part :E of schedule-II, it is in the process to 
comply in near future. 
 
(v) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: During the year under report the company has not 
received any complaint or any other matter wherein the provisions of this Act needs to be 
invoked. 
 
ANNUAL DECLARATION BY THE CEO PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE V (D) OF SEBI 
(LODR) REGULATIONS,2015  

 
As provided under Regulation 34(3) read with Para D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,2015 it is stated that all members of the 
Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed 
compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior 
Management, for the financial year ended March 31,2020 
 
New Delhi    Managing Director: Gyanendra Prakash 
Date:27th June,2020   Din:01444823 
     Address: House no:749, Sector-15, Vasundhara, 

    Ghaziabad-201012 
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Annexure: 1 
 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To, 

THE MEMBERS OF WELLESLEY CORPORATION LIMITED 
 

1. We have examined the compliance of regulations of Corporate Governance by Wellesley 
Corporation Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended March 31,2020 as stipulated in 
Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2), and paragraphs C,D and E OF 
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015( the ‘Listing Regulations’). 

 
Management’s Responsibility  

2. The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the 
management. This responsibility includes the designing ,implementing and maintaining 
operating effectiveness of internal control to ensure compliance with the conditions of 
corporate governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to express a 
reasonable assurance in the form of and opinion as to whether the Company has complied 
with the conditions of corporate governance as stated in paragraph 2 above. Our 
responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by 
the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of corporate governance. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 
4. We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the applicable 

General Accepted Auditing Standards in India, the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificate 
for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical 
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

 
Opinion  

5. Based on the procedures performed by us and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations provided to us, in our opinion, the Company has complied in all material 
respects, with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations 
during the year ended March 31,2020 . We state that such compliance is an assurance neither 
as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficient or effectiveness with which the 
Management has conducted the affairs of the Company . 

 
Restrictions on use 

6. This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid regulations 
and may not be suitable for any other purpose. 

 
For M.K Jain & Co  

                                                                                                                       Chartered Accountants 
  

Sakshi Arora 

Date:27th June,2020       Partner  

Place: New Delhi       M No.F-528300 

                                                                                                            Fr no:009694N 
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Annexure: 2 

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 

 
We, Gyanendra Prakash,Managing Director &Sumeer Narain Mathur,Company Secretary 
&Chief Financial Officer of Wellesley Corporation Limited, certify to the Board that: 
 
a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 

31.03.2020 and that to the best of their knowledge and belief : 

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 

fact or contain statements that might be misleading ; 

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and 

comply with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

company during the year that are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the company’s code of 

conduct. 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that I 

have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and we 

have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or 

operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps they have 

taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee that –  

i. There has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting 

during the year under reference; 

ii.  There has not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the year under 

requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial statements; and 

iii. There has not been any instances during the year of significant fraud of which we had 

become aware and the Involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee 

having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 

reporting. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
   Director:Gyanendra Prakash   

    Din:01444823 
Address:House no:749,Sector-15,Vasundhara, 
Ghaziabad-201012 

New Delhi     Sumeer Narain Mathur  
Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer:  

Date:27thJune,2020    Membership no:F9042 
      Address:House no:04,Seemant Vihar, 

Behind Radisson Hotel,Kaushambi, 
Ghaziabad-201014  
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2020 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

 

The Members, 

Wellesley Corporation Limited 

Uttarakhand 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by Wellesley Corporation Limited (hereinafter 

called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 

our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 

filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 

covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by Wellesley Corporation Limited for the financial year ended on 31st 

March, 2020 according to the provisions of the following: 

 

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

 

(2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there 

under; 

 

(3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

 

(4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings; 

 

(5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

1992; 

 

(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit 

Period); 

 
 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company 

during the Audit Period); 

 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 

(6) Other Applicable Laws 

 

1 The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 

2 The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

3 Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 1952 

4 Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 

5 The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 

6 The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 

7 Income Tax Act 1961, & rules made there under 

8 Negotiable Instrument, 1881 

9 Maternity Benefits Act, 1961 

10 Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

11 The Apprentices Act, 1961 

12 The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 

13 The Child Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 

14 Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution), 1974 and rules there under 
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15 Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and rules there under 

16 The Indian Stamp Act, 1889 

17 Indian Contract Act, 1872 

18 Transfer of Property Act, 1882 

19 Indian Registration Act, 1808 

20 Indian Evidence Act, 1872 

21 The Consumer Protection Act, 1986 

22 Building & Construction Workers Welfare Cess Act, 1996 

23 Goods & Services Tax Act 2017 

24 The Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 

 

(ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015; 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following 

observations: 

 
1. There was a gap of 127 days between two Board Meetings during the year under review.  To this 

extent, there is a non-compliance of Section 173(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 

17(2) SEBI (LODR), 2015, as amended from time to time. The Board of Directors of the 

Company has taken note of this non-compliance in their meeting held on 11.11.2019.  

 

2. The Company has appointed the present incumbent, who is an MBA (Finance) besides ACS, 

Company Secretary (CS) as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) also as required under Section 203 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule (8) of Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel 

Rules, 2014. We were informed that the company’s financial position does not allow keeping two 

separate persons as CS and CFO. 

 
3. BSE vide its notification dated 23rd February, 2017 has placed the securities of the company (Script 

Code/Symbol: 532016/Wellesley) into Graded Surveillance Measure (GSM) at its stage -0. Since 

then neither the securities were removed from the surveillance nor has the same been moved to any 

other stage of GSM. Further the company has not received any clarification/query from Bombay 

Stock Exchange or SEBI with regard to trading of our securities at BSE. The status of the Securities 

of the company listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) continues to be same as on the date of 

the Report. 

 

As per the information and explanations provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we report that the 

provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations 

made there under to the extent of: 
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(i) External Commercial Borrowings were not attracted to the Company under the financial 

year under report; 

 

(ii) Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) was not attracted to the company under the financial 

year under report; 

 

(iii) Overseas Direct Investment by Residents in Joint Venture / Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

abroad was not attracted to the company under the financial year under report. 

 

(b) As per the information and explanations provided by the company, its officers, agents and 

authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we report that the 

Company has not made any GDRs/ADRs or any Commercial Instrument under the financial 

year under report. 

 

We have relied on the information and representation made by the Company and its Officers 

for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable 

Acts, Laws, and Regulations to the Company. 

 

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 

proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period 

under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate notice 

is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 

further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting. All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee 

Meetings are carried out unanimously/ as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the 

Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of: 

(i) Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc. 

(ii) Redemption / buy-back of securities 

(iii) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section180 of the  

Companies Act, 2013 

(iv) Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc. 

(v) Foreign technical collaborations 

 

 

 

For Vijay Kaul and Co 

 

Vijay K Kaul  

Place: Delhi 

Date: 

Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS No.:2719; C P No.:4722                                                                                               

UIDIN No.-  
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Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE 

A’ which forms an integral part of this report. 

 

 

ANNEXURE A’ 

 

To, 

The Members, 

WELLESLEY CORPORATION LIMITED 

Uttarakhand 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 

to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and 

practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. WE HAVE NOT BEEN ABLE TO VISIT THE OFFICE OF THE COMPANY IN VIEW OF 

THE PREVAILING COVID-19 PANADEMIC AND RESTRICTIONS IMPOSED ON THIS 

ACCOUNT AND HAVE RELIED FULLY ON THE SOFT COPIES / PHOTOCOPIES OF 

DOCUMENTS PROVIDED TO US BY E-MAIL WITHOUT EXAMINING THE ORIGINALS. 

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 

of the company. 

5. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 

test basis. 

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

 

Place: Delhi                                                                                                        

Date:27th June,2020  

UIDIN No.- 

  For Vijay Kaul and Co 

 

  Vijay K Kaul 

  Practicing Company Secretary 

  FCS No.:2719; C P No.:4722                                                   
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Annexure: 4 
DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 4 & 5 OF THE COMPANIES APPOINTMENT & REMUNARATION OF 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL RULES 2014 
Sr  
No 

Particulars Remarks 

A The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the 
medianremuneration of the employees of the company for 
the financialyear; 

Managing Director-16.69% 

B The percentage increase in remuneration of each director,  
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year; 

Managing Director: -NIL 
Company Secretary:-9.89% 

C  The percentage increase in the median remuneration of  
employees in the financial year; 

NIL 

D The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
company; 

2 

E The explanation on the relationship between average 
increase in remuneration and company performance; 

As per Industry Standards 

F Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial  
Personnel against the performance of the company; 

Satisfactory 

G Variations in the market capitalization of the company,  
price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current  
financial year and previous financial year and percentage 
 increase over decrease in the market quotations of the 
 shares of the company in comparison to the rate at which 
 the company came out with the last public offer in case of  
listed companies, and in case of unlisted companies, the  
variations in the net worth of the company as at the close 
of the current financial year and previous financial year; 

 31st 
March, 
2020 

31st 
March, 
2019 

a)Market 
Capitalization 
b)PE  ratio 
c)Increase  
 over last public offer 

9,45,02,800 
 
      - 
 
 NIL 

9,45,02,800 
 
    - 
 
26.31) 

H Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of  
Employees other than the managerial personnel in the last  
financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and  justification 
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration; 

Not applicable  

I Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key  
Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 
company; 

Average Remuneration of KMP’S increased by NIL  
whereas revenue decreased by 132% 

J The key parameters for any variable  component of  
remuneration availed by the directors; 

Not Applicable 

K The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director 
to that of the employees who are not directors but receive  
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during 
the year; 

22.47% 

K Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the company. 

Yes the remuneration is as perCompany’s policy  
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Annual Report 2019-20 
 
Annexure: 5 

     FormNo.MGT-9 
           EXTRACTOFANNUALRETURN 

                     As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 

[Pursuanttosection92(3)oftheCompaniesAct,2013andrule12(1)oftheCompanies 

                           (ManagementandAdministration)Rules,2014] 
 
 
 

I.     REGISTRATIONANDOTHERDETAILS: 

 

i)     CIN:-L45202UR1991PLC000604 
 

ii)    RegistrationDate: 23-10-1991 
 

iii)    NameoftheCompany: WELLESLEY CORPORATION LIMITED 
 

iv)   Category/Sub-CategoryoftheCompany: PUBLIC LISTED COMPANY 
 

v)    AddressoftheRegisteredofficeandcontactdetails  

  Shop#1, Country Inn, Mehragaon, Bhimtal, Uttarakhand-248179 
 

vi)    Whetherlistedcompany       Yes 

vii)   Name,AddressandContactdetailsofRegistrarandTransferAgent,ifany 
 

M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 
(Unit- Wellesley Corporation Limited) 
D-153A, Ist Floor Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-I, New Delhi – 110 020 
Tel: - +91 – 11 – 2681-2682, 2681-2683 
Fax: - +91 – 11 – 3085 7562 
Email: admin@skylinerta.com 

 
  

II.   PRINCIPALBUSINESSACTIVITIESOFTHECOMPANY 

 

Allthebusinessactivitiescontributing10%ormoreofthetotal turnoverofthecompanyshallbestated:- 

 

Sl.No. Nameand Description of 

mainproducts/  

services 

NIC Codeof the  

Product/ service 

% tototal turnover 

ofthe company 

1 Real Estate Services              9972                    100 

 

III.   PARTICULARSOFHOLDING,SUBSIDIARYANDASSOCIATE COMPANIES –  

     N O T  A P P L I C A B L E .  
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IV.     SHAREHOLDINGPATTERN(EquityShareCapitalBreakupas percentageofTotalEquity) 

 
i)Category-wiseShareHolding 

 

Categoryof 

Shareholders 

No.ofSharesheldatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

No.ofSharesheldatthe end 

oftheyear 

Change % 

 Demat Physical Total %of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total %of 

Total 

Shares 

  

A. Promoters 

 
(1)Indian 
a)Individual/ HUF 

 
b)Central Govt 

 

c) StateGovt(s) 

 

d) Bodies Corp. 

 

e)Banks/FI 

 

f) Any Other…. 

 
Sub-total 
(A)(1):- 

 

(2)Foreign 

 
 
 

10000000 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
 
 

10000000 

 
 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
- 

 
 
 

10000000 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
 
 

10000000 
 

 
 
 

74.07 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
 

74.07 

 
 
 

74.07 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 

 
 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
- 

 
 
 

10000000 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
 
 

10000000 
 

 
 
 

74.07 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
 
 

74.07 

 
 
 

74.07 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 
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` 

 

 

1 

 

     
a)NRIs- Individuals  
 

b)Other– Individuals  
 

c)Bodies Corp. 
 

d)Banks/FI  

 

e)Any Other…. 

 
Sub-total 

(A)(2):- 
 
Total Shareholding 
of Promoter (A)=  
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 

10000000 

- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 

0 

- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 

10000000 

- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 

74.07 

- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 

10000000 

- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 
0 

- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 

10000000 

- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 

74.07 

- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 

NIL 

B.Public Shareholding 

 
1. 
Institutions 
a)MutualFunds 

b)Banks/FI 

c)CentralGovt  

d)StateGovt(s) 

e)Venture Capital Funds 

f)Insurance 

Companies  

g)FIIs 

h)ForeignVenture 

Capital Funds  

   i) Others (specify) 

 

 
 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
 
- 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



 

Sub-total 
(B)(1):- 

 

2.Non- Institutions 

a)Bodies Corp. 

i)Indian 

  ii)Overseas  

 

    b)Individuals 

 
 

i)Individual shareholders  
holding nominalshare  

capitalupto Rs. 2lakh 
 

ii)Individual shareholders  

holding nominalshare  

capitalin excessof 

Rs 2lakh 

 
c)Others(specify) 
1)Hindu Undivided Family 

  2) Clearing Members 
 
Sub-total (B)(2):- 

 

TotalPublic Shareholding (B)= 

(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 

 
- 
 
 
 
 

640790 
NIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

55643 
 
 
 
 

770662 
 
 

1205 
0 
 

1466300 
 
 

1466800 

 
- 
 
 
 
 

934500 
NIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

372200 
 
 
 
 

725400 
 
 
0 
0 
 

2032100 
 
 

2033600 

 
- 
 
 
 
 

1575290 
NIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

427843 
 
 
 
 

1496062 
 
 

1205 
0 
 

3500400 
 
 

3500400 

 
- 
 
 
 
 

11.67 
NIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3.17 
 
 
 
 

11.08 
 
 

0.01 
0 
 

25.93 
 
 

25.93 

 
- 
 
 
 
 

640790 
NIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

59244 
 
 
 
 

770662 
 
 

1204 
0 
 

1471500 
 
 

1468300 

 
- 
 
 
 
 

934500 
NIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

369000 
 
 
 
 

725400 
 
 
0 
0 
 

2028900 
 
 

2032100 

 
- 
 
 
 
 

1575290 
NIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

428244 
 
 
 
 

1496062 
 
 

1204 
0 
 

3500400 
 
 

3500400 

 
- 
 
 
 
 

11.67 
NIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3.17 
 
 
 
 

11.08 
 
 

0.01 
0 
 

25.93 
 
 

25.93 

 
- 
 
 
 
 

NIL 
NIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 
 

NIL 
 
 

NIL 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
 

NIL 

C.Shares heldby  

Custodianfor  

GDRs&ADRs 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

GrandTotal 
(A+B+C) 

1,14,68,300 20,32100 1,35,00,400 25.93 
 

1,14,71,500 2028900 1,35,00,400 25.93 NIL 

 

(ii)ShareholdingofPromoters  

 
 

iii)ChangeinPromoters’Shareholding(pleasespecify,ifthereisnochange): No Change  

 

 

 

 

Sl 

N o. 

Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholdingatthe beginningoftheyear Shareholdingattheend  

oftheyear 

 

  No. of  

Shares 

%of total  

Shares 

ofthe  

company 

%of Shares  

Pledged/  

encumbered 

to total shares 

No. of  

Shares 

%of total  

Shares  

ofthe  

company 

%of Shares  

Pledged/ 

encumbered 

to total shares 

%changein  

share holding  

duringthe  

year 

1 SADHANA RAI 10000000 74.07 NIL 10000000 74.07 NIL 74.07 
 

 Total 10000000 74.07 NIL 10000000 74.07 NIL NIL 
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(iv)ShareholdingPatternoftopten Shareholders(otherthanDirectors,PromotersandHoldersofGDRsandADRs): 
 

Sl.  

No. 

 

        Shareholder’s Name 
 

Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal 

sharesof the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotal 

shares 

ofthe company 

     1 M/s High Scale Properties Pvt Limited     

 Atthe beginningof theyear 349900 2.59 349900 2.59 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  

 

 

 

 

NIL NIL 349900 2.59 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

349900 2.59 349900 2.59 

 

Sl. 

No. 

        Shareholder’s Name 
 

Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

         No.of  

         Shares 

%oftotal  

sharesof the 

 company 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe company 

   2 M/s P. Saha InfoTech Pvt Limited     

 Atthe beginningof theyear 290490 2.15 290490 2.15 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL 290490 2.15 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

290490 2.15 290490 2.15 

 

Sl. 

No. 

        Shareholder’s Name 
 

Shareholdingatthe beginningof 

theyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

         No.of  

         Shares 

%oftotal  

sharesof the 

 company 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe company 

   3 M/s Lokjeet Investments & Finance Pvt Ltd      

 Atthe beginningof theyear           263200         1.95            263200               1.95 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year               NIL          NIL            263200               1.95 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

          263200          1.95            263200               1.95 

 

Sl. 

No. 

        Shareholder’s Name 
 

Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

         No.of  

         Shares 

%oftotal  

sharesof the 

 company 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe company 

   4 M/s Prjapati Electricals & Electronics Pvt Ltd     

 Atthe beginningof theyear 226900 1.68 226900 1.68 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  

30.03.2019 (Transfer of Shares) 

 

 

 

(226900) 

 

(1.68) 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

      

 

 

Sl. 

No. 

        Shareholder’s Name 

 
Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

         No.of  

         Shares 

%oftotal  

sharesof the 

 company 

 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe company 

  5 M/s Sagadh Engineering Pvt Limited     

 Atthe beginningof theyear 226900 1.68 226900 1.68 
 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL 226900 1.68 
 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

226900 1.68 226900 1.68 
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Sl. 

No. 

        Shareholder’s Name 
 

Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

         No.of  

         Shares 

%oftotal  

sharesof the 

 company 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe company 

   6 M/s Austere General Trades Pvt Limited     
 Atthe beginningof theyear          226900                      1.68          226900                      1.68 
 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year              NIL                       NIL          226900                      1.68 
 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

         226900                      1.68          226900                      1.68 

 

Sl. 

No. 

        Shareholder’s Name 
 

Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 
No.of 

Shares 

%oftotal 

sharesof the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe company 

  7 Mr. Harishankar Pal     

 Atthe beginningof theyear 172300 1.28 172300 1.28 
 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL 172300 1.28 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

172300 1.28 172300 1.28 

 

Sl. 

No. 

        Shareholder’s Name 
 

Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of 

Shares 

%oftotal 

sharesof the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe company 

   8 M/s Intent Marketing Pvt Ltd     
 Atthe beginningof theyear 165800 1.23 165800 1.23 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  

30.03.2019 

(165800) (1.23) NIL NIL 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

Sl. 

No. 

        Shareholder’s Name 
 

Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of 

Shares 

%oftotal 

sharesof the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe company 

   9 Mrs. Meena Paul     

 Atthe beginningof theyear 160400 1.19 160400 1.19 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL 160400 1.19 
 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

160400 1.19 160400 1.19 

 

 

 

Sl. 

  No. 

  Shareholder’s Name Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal 

sharesof the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe Company 

   10 Mr. Sardari Lal     

 Atthe beginningof theyear 130300 0.97 130300 0.97 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL 130300 0.97 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

130300 0.97 130300 0.97 
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Sl. 

  No. 

  Shareholder’s Name Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal 

sharesof the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe Company 

   11 Mr.Sanjay Kumar Yadav      

 Atthe beginningof theyear NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  

Purchase on 30.03.2019 

 

 

226900 1.68 226900 1.68 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

226900 1.68 226900 1.68 

 

Sl. 

  No. 

  Shareholder’s Name Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal 

sharesof the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

ofthe Company 

   12 Mr. Durga Nand Yadav     

 Atthe beginningof theyear NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  

Purchase on 30.03.2019 

165800 1.23 165800 1.23 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

165800 1.23 165800 1.23 

 

 

v)ShareholdingofDirectorsandKeyManagerialPersonnel: 

 

 

 

Sl. 

No. 
 

 
 
     1 

Director’s Name Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

of the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotalshares 

ofthe company 

Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia 

 

    

 Atthe beginningof theyear NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL NIL Nil 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

NIL NIL NIL Nil 

Sl. 

No. 
 

 
 

 
     2 

Director’s Name Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

of the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotalshares 

ofthe company 

Mr. Deepak Jalan 

 

    

 Atthe beginningof theyear NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL NIL Nil 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

NIL NIL NIL Nil 

Sl. 
No. 
 

 
 
 

     3 

Director’s Name Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

of the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotalshares 

ofthe company 

Mr. Piyush Prakash 

 

    

 Atthe beginningof theyear NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL NIL Nil 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

NIL NIL NIL Nil 
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Sl. 

No. 
 

 
 
 

     4 

Director’s Name Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

of the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotalshares 

ofthe company 

Mrs. Sadhana Rai 

 

    

 Atthe beginningof theyear 1,00,00,000 74.07 1,00,00,000 74.07 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL NIL Nil 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

1,00,00,000 74.07 1,00,00,000 74.07 

Sl. 
No. 

 
 

 
 

5 

Director’s Name Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

of the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotalshares 

ofthe company 

Mr. Gyanendra Prakash  

 

    

 Atthe beginningof theyear NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL NIL Nil 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

NIL NIL NIL Nil 

Sl. 
No. 
 

 
 

 
6 

Director’s Name Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

of the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotalshares 

ofthe company 

Mr. Saurabh Kedia  

 

    

 Atthe beginningof theyear NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL NIL Nil 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

NIL NIL NIL Nil 

Sl. 

No. 
 
 

 
 

7 

Director’s Name Shareholdingatthe beginning 

oftheyear 

CumulativeShareholding during 

theyear 

No.of shares %oftotal shares 

of the 

company 

No.of shares %oftotalshares 

ofthe company 

Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur 

 

    

 Atthe beginningof theyear NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL NIL Nil 

 AttheEnd of theyear 

 

NIL NIL NIL Nil 
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-V.INDEBTEDNESS 
Indebtedness oftheCompany includinginterestoutstanding/accrued butnotdueforpayment 

 SecuredLoans  

excluding deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtednessatthe beginning 

ofthefinancial year 

 

 
i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but not paid  
iii) Interest accrued but not due  

 
 

 
 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
 

 
 

 
 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
 

 
 

 
 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
 

 
 

 
 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
 Total(i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

ChangeinIndebtedness  

duringthefinancialyear 

 

·  Addition 

·  Reduction 

    

NetChange NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Indebtednessatthe end  

ofthefinancial year 

 

 
i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but not paid  
iii) Interest accrued but not due  

 

 
 
 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
 

 

 
 
 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
 

 

 
 
 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
 

 

 
 
 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
 Total(i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

VI.   REMUNERATIONOFDIRECTORSANDKEYMANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
A.RemunerationtoManagingDirector,Whole-timeDirectorsand/orManager: 

 
 

2. StockOption NIL NIL 

3. SweatEquity NIL NIL 

4. Commission 

-  as%ofprofit 

-  others,specify… 

NIL NIL 

5. Others,pleasespecify NIL NIL 

 Total(A) 2,40,000 2,40,000 
 CeilingaspertheAct             30 Lacs       30 Lacs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sl. no. ParticularsofRemuneration NameofMD 

/WTD/  

Manager 

Total 

Amount 

  Mr. Gyanendra Prakash 

--- 
---- 

1. Grosssalary 

(a) Salaryasperprovisions containedinsection 

17(1) oftheIncome-taxAct,1961 
(b) Valueofperquisitesu/s 17(2)Income-taxAct, 

        1961 
(c)   Profitsinlieuofsalary undersection17(3) 

          Income- taxAct,1961 

 
 

2,40,000 
 

              NIL 
 
              NIL 

 
 

2,40,000 
 

       NIL 
 
       NIL 
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B.Remunerationtootherdirectors: 

 

 

Sl 

No. 

 

 

 

 

ParticularsofRemuneration 

NameofDirectors  Total 

Amount 

Mr.  

Vishnu  

Gopal  

Rajgarhia 

 

Mr.  

Deepak 

Jalan 

 

 

Mr.Piyush 

 Prakash  

 

Mrs. 

Sadhana Rai 

Mr. saurabh 
Kedia 

 

 1.IndependentDirectors 

 

·Feeforattendingboard committee 

meetings 

·Commission 

·Others,pleasespecify 

 
 

 
8000 
NIL 

 
 

 
4000 
NIL 

 
 

 
6000 
NIL 

 
 

 
8000 
NIL 

 
 

 
4000 
NIL 

 
 

 
            30000 

NIL 

 Total(1)   8000 4000 6000 8000 4000 30000 

 2.OtherNon-Executive 

Directors 

 

·Feeforattendingboard committee 

meetings 

·Commission 

·Others,pleasespecify 

 
 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

 
 

NIL 

 Total(2) NIL NIL NIL NIL  NIL 

 Total(B)=(1+2) 8000 4000 6000 8000 4000 30000 

 TotalManagerial 

Remuneration 

     2.70 Lacs 

 OverallCeilingaspertheAct      84 lacs 

 

 

C. RemunerationtokeymanagerialPersonnelOtherThan MD/Manager/WTD 

Sl. no. Particularsof 

Remuneration 

KeyManagerialPersonnel 

  CEO             CS & CFO 

     Sumeer Narain Mathur 

 

Total 

1. Grosssalary 

(a) Salaryasper  

provisions containedin section17(1)of  

theIncome-tax Act,1961 

 

(b)Valueof perquisites 

u/s 17(2)Income-tax 

Act,1961 

 

(c)Profitsinlieuof salary 

undersection17(3)Income-tax 

Act,1961 

 

 
NIL 

 
 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

 
NIL 

 

 
10,68,000 

 
 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

 
NIL 

 

 

 
10,68,000 

 
 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

 
NIL 

 

2. StockOption NIL NIL NIL 

3. SweatEquity NIL NIL NIL 

4. Commission 

      -    as%of profit 
      -others,specify… 

NIL NIL NIL 

5. Others,please specify NIL NIL NIL 

 Total NIL 10,68,000 10,68,000 
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VII. P E N A L T I E S /PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDINGOFOFFENCES: 

Type Section  

of the  

Companies Act 

Brief  

Description of 

Penalty 

Details of  

Punishments/ 

Compounding  Fees 

Authority 

RD/NCLT/ 

COURT 

Appeal Made 

(If any ) 

 

 
A.COMPANY  

Penalty N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

Punishment N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

Compounding N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

B.DIRECTORS  

Penalty N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

Punishment N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

Compounding N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

C.OTHEROFFICERSINDEFAULT  

Penalty N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

Punishment N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

Compounding N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 
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Annexure 6 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SECTION 188 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

 Form No. AOC – 2 

 (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

 Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the 
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under thirdproviso 
thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements 
or transactions not at arm's length 
basis 

The Company has not entered into any 
contract or arrangement or transaction 
with its related parties, which is not at 
arm’s length during the year ended on 
March 31,2020 

2. Details of material contracts or 
arrangement or transactions at arm's 
length basis 

The Company has not entered into any 
contract or arrangement or transaction 
with its related parties, which is at arm’s 
length during the year ended on March 
31,2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To 

the Members of Wellesley Corporation Ltd 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statement 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Wellesley Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 

balance sheet as at 31st March 2020, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 

financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 

2020, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 

position, financial performance, (changes in equity)5 and cash flows of the Company in accordance with6 the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
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individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these financial statements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books; 

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes 
in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed 

under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts), Rules,2014. 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the 

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director 

in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us: 

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements(Refer Note no:28 of the Financial Statements) 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company. 

 

For M.K Jain & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 
Sakshi Arora 

Date : 27th June, 2020 Partner 

Place : New Delhi M No.F528300 
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Annexure A”to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

Referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”of the Independent Auditors Report of 

even date to the members of Wellesley Corporation Ltd , on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 

31, 2020: 

 
i. (a) The Company does not have any Fixed Assets such as Properties, Plants and Equipment’s during the year. 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) of the Order are not applicable to the Company 

 
ii. The company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) are not applicable to the 

Company. 

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or 
other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 

(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. ii.The company does not have any inventory and hence clauses 

of inventories are not applicable. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any loans, 
investments, guarantees and securities in respect of which provision of section 185 and I86 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon. 

 
v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of 

India and the provisions of Sections 73,74,75& 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

 
vi. The company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) 

of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
vii. a) According to information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 

opinion,company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of Provident Fund, 
Employee’s State Insurance, Service Tax, cess and Income Tax, and any other Statutory dues, as applicable, 

with the appropriate authorities. No such statutory dues were outstanding at the year end, for a period of more 

than six months from the date they become payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, 

duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on account of any dispute. 

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company did not 
have any loans or borrowings from Financial Institutions, Banks, debentures during the year, accordingly provisions 
of clause 3 (viii) of the order are not applicable to the company. 

 
ix. According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us,during the 

year no money were raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)or by way of 
term loans. 

 
x. According to the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us by management, no 

fraud noticed by the Company,or any fraud on the company by its officers, or employees during the year. 

 
xi. According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, managerial 

remuneration paid during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with schedule 5to the 
Companies Act,2013. 

 
xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not 

applicable to the Company. 

 
xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us by management, all transactions with the related parties are 

in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed 
in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards 
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xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us by management, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
xv. According to the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us by management, the 

company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934 

 
 
 

For M.K Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

 
Sakshi Arora 

Date : 27th June,2020 Partner 

Place :  New Delhi M No.F528300 
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial 

Statements of Wellesley Corporation Ltd 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) 

 
i. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Wellesley Corporation Ltd (“the Company”) 

as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 

that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

ii. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 

of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

iii. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

iv. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

v. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

vi. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

vii. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
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periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

viii. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, 

based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. 

For M.K Jain & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 
Sakshi Arora 

Date : 27th June,2020 Partner 

Place : New Delhi M No.F528300 
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees) 

Particulars Note No Figures as at the end 
of the current reporting 

period 31st March, 
2020 

Figures as at the  
end of the previous 

reporting period 31st 
March, 2019 

I. ASSETS    

(1) Non Current Assets    

(a) Other Intangible assets 2                              1,43,000 1,43,000 

(b) Deferred tax assets (Net) 

(c) Financial Assets                                                                                            

3 

4 

                           11,52,687 

                           19,61,969 

8,34,391 

                        19,61,969 

(d) Other non-current assets 5  91,85,479    94,29,954 

(2) Current Assets 
   

(a) Financial Assets    

i) Trade receivables 6                              5,44,300       - 

ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7         7,986                         14,21,222 

iii) Bank Balances other than (ii)above 8 1,87,396 1,84,735 

(b) Other current assets 9  11,250  11,250 

Total Assets  
 

 1,31,94,068 
 

 1,39,86,521 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  
  

EQUITY    

(a) Equity Share Capital 10 13,50,04,000 13,50,04,000 

(b) Other Equity 11  (12,23,02,100)   (12,13,96,181) 

LIABILITIES    

(1) Non Current Liabilities    

(a) Provisions 12 2,18,597 2,31,777 

(2) Current Liabilities 
   

(a) Other current liabilities 13 2,59,134 1,34,491 

(b) Provisions 14   14,437 12,434 

    

Total Equity and Liabilities  
 

 1,31,94,068 

 

 

 1,39,86,521 

 
  

  

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1 

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
FOR M.K JAIN & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Director : Sadhana Rai 

(Firm Regn No 009694N) Din : 01585720 

   

 
 

Director 
Din 

: Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia 
: 00480125 

 Director 
Din 

: Saurabh Kedia 
: 02476376- 

Managing Director : Gyanendra Prakash 

 

SAKSHI ARORA 

Din 
 
Company 

: 01444823 
 

: 
PARTNER Secretary &  

M NO:F-528300 Chief Financial  

 Officer : Sumeer Narain Mathur 
Place: New Delhi Date:27th,June,2020 Membership no : FCS-9042 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2020 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees) 

Particulars Note 

No 

Figures for the 

current reporting 

period 

March 31, 2020 

Figures for 

the previous 
reporting period 

March 31, 2019 

I. Revenue from operations 

II Other Income 

III Total Income(I + II) 

IV EXPENSES 

Employee benefits expense 

Other expenses 

Total expenses (IV) 

V Profit/(loss) before Exceptional items and tax(I- IV) 

VI Exceptional Items 

VII Profit before tax (V- VI) 

VIII Tax expense: 

(1) Current tax 

(2) Deferred tax 

IX Profit (Loss) for the period (VII-VIII) 

X Other Comprehensive Income 

(Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss) 

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) 

(Comprising Profit (Loss) and other Comprehensive 
Income for the period) 

XII Earnings per equity share 

(1) Basic 

(2) Diluted 

15 

16 

 
 

17 

18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19 

8,75,000 29,66,700 

34,529 78,368 
 

9,09,529 
 

 

30,45,068 

13,67,812 13,82,903 

8,25,046 24,27,001 
 

21,92,858 
 

38,09,904 
 

(12,83,329) 
 

(7,64,836) 

- - 

(12,83,329)                (7,64,836) 

- - 

(3,18,296) (51,481) 
 

(9,65,033) 
 

(7,13,355) 

59,114 (54,834) 

(9,05,919) (7,68,189) 

 
(0.07) 

 
0.06 

(0.07) 0.06 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1 

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
FOR M.K JAIN & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Director : Sadhana Rai 

(Firm Regn No 009694N) Din : 01585720 

 Director 
Din 

: Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia 
: 00480125 

 Director 
Din 

: Saurabh Kedia 
: 02476376 

Managing Director : Gyanendra Prakash 

 

SAKSHI ARORA 

Din 
 

Company 

: 01444823 
 

: 
PARTNER Secretary &  

M NO:F-528300 Chief Financial  

 Officer : Sumeer Narain Mathur 
Place: New Delhi Membership no : FCS-9042 
Date: 27thJune,2020   

61



  
   Annual Report 2019-20   

 

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended on March 31, 2020 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees) 

Particulars Figures as at the 

end of the current 

reporting period 

31st March,2020 

Figures as at the 

end of the previous 

reporting period 

31st March,2019 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE INTEREST   

Profit before taxation (12,24,215)  (819,670) 

Adjustment for :   

Depreciation and amortisation   

Interest income (34,529) (78,368) 

Operating cash flow before working Capital changes (12,58,744) (898,038) 

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables (5,44,300) 1,348,760 

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current assets - 1,811 

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non Current Assets 2,44,475 769,672 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (13,180) 97,977 

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities 1,26,646 (169,501) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities - - 

Adjustment for conversion of Non Cash equivalent items into Cash 63,065 63,065 

and Cash Equivalents   

Cash genrated from operation 13,82,038 1,213,746 

Income taxes paid, net - - 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES(A) 13,82,038 1,213,746 

B CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   

Interest received 34,529 78,368 

Less:Being not related to Cash and Cash Equivalent items. (10,347) (10,347) 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES(B) 24,182 68,021 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - - 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ( C ) - - 

Net Inc/(Dec) in Cash and Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) 13,57,856 1,281,767 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year 14,21,222 139,455 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year 7,986 1,421,222 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1 

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
FOR M.K JAIN & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Director : Sadhana Rai 

(Firm Regn No 009694N) Din : 01585720 

 Director 
Din 

: Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia 
: 00480125 

 

Managing Director : Gyanendra Prakash 

 

SAKSHI ARORA 

Din 
 

Company 

: 01444823 
 

: 
PARTNER 
M NO:F-528300 

Secretary & 
Chief Financial 
Officer 

 

: Sumeer Narain Mathur 
Place: New Delhi  Membership no : FCS-9042 
Date: 27th, June,2020   

 Director   

 Din           

:Saurabh Kedia 
 
02476376 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31ST MARCH,2020 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees) 
 

A Equity Share Capital 

Balance at the beginning of the 

reporting period 

Changes in equity share capital 

during the year 

Balance at the end of the reporting 

period 

135004000 NIL 135004000 

B Other Equity 
 

 Share 

Appli- 

cation 

money 

pending 

allot- 

ments 

Equity 

Compo- 

nent of 

com- 

pound 

financial 

instru- 
ments 

Reserve & Surplus Debt 

Instrume

nts 

through 

other 

compre- 

hensi
ve 

incom
e 

Equity 

Instruments 

through 

other com- 

prehensive 

income 

Effective 

portion 

of cash 

flow 

hedges 

Reval- 

utions 

surplus 

Ex- 

change 

differ- 

ences 

on  

translat- 

ing the 
financial 

state- 

ments of 

a foreign 

operation 

Other 

items of 

other 

compre- 

hensive 

income 

(specify 
nature) 

Money 

received 

against 

share 

warrant 

Total 

Capital 

Reserve 

Secu- 

rities 

Premi- 

um Ac- 

count 

Other 

reserves 

(specify 

nature) 

Retained 

Earnings 

Balance at the 

beginning of the 

reporting period 

- - - - -  
(12,13,96,181) 

 - - - - - -  
(12,13,96,181) 

Changes in 
accounting policy 
or perior period 
errors 

- - - - - -  - - - - - - - 

Restated balance 

at the beginning 
of the reporting 
period 

- - - - - -  - - - - - - - 

Total 
comprehensive 
income for the 

year 

- - - - - (9,05,919)  - - - - - - (9,05,919) 

Dividends - - - - - -  - - - - - - - 

Transfer to 

retained earnings 

- - - - - -  - - - - - - - 

Any other change 
(to be specified) 

- - - - - -  - - - - - - - 

Balance at 

the end of 

the reporting 

period 

- - - - -  
(12,23,02,100) 

 - - - - - -  
(12,23,02,100) 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1 

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
FOR M.K JAIN & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Director : Sadhana Rai 

(Firm Regn No 009694N) Din : 01585720 

 
Director 
Din 

: Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia 
: 480125 

              
Managing Director : Gyanendra Prakash 

 

SAKSHI ARORA 

Din 
 

Company 

: 01444823 
 

: 
PARTNER 
M NO:F-528300 

Secretary & 
Chief Financial 
Officer 

 

: Sumeer Narain Mathur 
Place: New Delhi Membership no : FCS-9042 
Date: 27th, June,2020   
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March,2020 

Note No. 1 

(A) CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The Company was incorporated on October 23, 1991, under the provisions of theCompanies Act,1956. The company 
Registered Office is located at Bhimtal,DistNanital (Uttarakhand).The Company has been primarily engaged in the 
business of Real Estate Services. The company has also adopted Hotel Business as its main business in addition  
to its existing business of Real Estate Services w.e.f 31st May,2020, however the company has not carried out any 
activity of Hotel Business during the year . 

(B) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I. Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred 
to as the Ind AS)as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)rules and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)as 
amended. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands. 

II. Basis of Measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise indicated. Historical cost 
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. 

III. Revenue Recongnisation 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefit will flow to the Company and that the 
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable 
taking into account contractually defined terms of payments  and excluding taxes and duties collected on behalf of the 
Government. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. 

A) Revenue in case of Sale of Services 

Revenue in case of property maintenance services shall be recognized when the amount of revenue can be 
measured, it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the entity, stage of completion can be measured 
reliably ,the cost incurred and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. 

B) Revenue in case of Sale of Good 

Revenue in case of sale of goods shall be recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods has 
been transferred , the amount of revenue can be measured reliably ,it is probable that economic benefits will flow 
to the entity, ,the cost incurred and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. 

C) Interest income on bank deposits is recognized on accrual basis on a time proportion basis. 

IV. Employee benefits 

a. Defined contribution plan 

The Company’s contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as 
an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the 
employees. 

b. Defined benefit plan 

For defined benefit plan in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is  determined  using  the 
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting 
period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected  immediately  in  the  balance 
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. 
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is 
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 
Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows: 

• service cost comprising current service costs, past service costs 
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• net interest expense or income; and 

• remeasurement 

c. Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits in respect of wages and salaries leaves etc. are 
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchangefor the related service. 
Accumulated leaves expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, are treated as long-term employee 
benefits. Liability for such long term benefit is provided based on the actuarial valuation using theprojected unit 
credit method at year-end. 

V. Taxation 

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. 

Current tax 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year calculated in accordance with the Income 
Tax Act and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding amounts used in the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in 
othercomprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in 
othercomprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) is payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under 
MATare available as a set off against regular income tax payable in subsequent years. MAT paid in a year is charged 
to theStatement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to 
the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period 
i.e the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. MAT credit is recognised as an asset and is shown 
as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’. The Company reviews the ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and write 
down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the 
specified period. 

VI. Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are measured at cost and be recognized when the probable expected future economic benefits 
attributable to the assets will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. 

VII. Property Plant & Equipment 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognized as an asset if and only if It is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably.Depreciation thereon shall be charged based on the useful life on an asset as per the useful life of the 
assets its residual value. 

VIII. Provisions 

A provision is recognized when acompany has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined on best estimate basis required to settle the 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. These are reviewed at each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the 
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current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets not recognized but are disclosed where an 
infow of economic benefit is probable. 

IX. Segment Reporting 

In line with the provisions of Ind AS 108 - operating segments and on the basis the review of operations being done 
by the Board and the management,the operations of the company fall under real estate business, which is considered 
to be the only reportable segment. The company derives its major revenues from real estate services. The Company 
isoperating in India which is considered as a single geographical segment. 

X. Earning Per Share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Since there is no potential; dilutive equity shares hence there is no impact on basic EPS while calculating dilutive EPS. 

XI. Current and Non Current Classification 

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Company’snormal operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Revised Schedule III to the CompaniesAct, 2013 

Assets 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle; 

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

c) it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 
months after the reporting date. 

Liabilities 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle; 

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

c) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the reporting date.Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

XII. Cash Flow Statement 

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available 
information. Cash flows from operating activities are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before 
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future cash receipts or payments. 

XIII. Impairment 

The carrying amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on 
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost of 
capital. 

XIV. Inventory 

Inventories are stated at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Net realisable value (NRV) is the 
estimatedselling price in the ordinary course of the business, less the estimated costsofcompletion and the estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of all categories of inventory 
is determined using weighted average cost method. The cost is arrived at first in first out basis(FIFO). 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2020 
NOTE NO. 2 

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 

PARTICULARS Figures as 

at the end of 
the current 

reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2020 

Figures as 

at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019 

Brands or Trademarks 143,000 143,000 

TOTAL 
 

143,000 
 

143,000 

 

2.1 Expenses of Rs 1,43,000/-incurred for registering trade mark “Bio Naturals” for its health food & beauty products 

business is show as intangible assets at cost. 

NOTE - 3 

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) 
 

PARTICULARS Figures as at the 

end of the previous 

reporting period 

31st March, 2019 

Movement 

During the 

year (net) 

Figures as 

at the end of 

the current 

reporting period 
31st March, 2020 

Deferred Tax Asset 
(Brought forward losses & Un absorbed depreciation) 

                            8,34,391 3,18,296 11,52,687 

Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 8,34,391 3,18,296 11,52,687 

NOTE - 4 

FINANCIAL ASSETS (TRADE RECEIVABLES) 
 

PARTICULARS Figures as 

at the end of 

the current 

reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2020 

Figures as 

at the end of 

the previous 

reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019 

   

Unsecured Considered Good (Note 4.1) 19,61,969 19,61,969 

 

Doubtful (Note 4.2) 

 

 

4,25,426 

 

  4,25,426 

 
 

4,25,426 
 

4,25,426 
Less:-Provision for doubtful advance   4,25,426   4,25,426  

TOTAL   19,61,969        19,61,969  

Note 4.1 

Rs 19,61,969/- recoverable from NSEL (National Spot Exchange Limited) in under litigation 

Note 4.2 

Rs 4,25,426/- recoverable from Mr. Rakesh Sharma is doubtful. Despite having court decree, being not traceable 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2020 

 

NOTE - 5 

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 
 

PARTICULARS Figures as 

at the end of 

the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2020 

Figures as 

at the end of 

the previous 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019 

i) Advances other than capital advances   

a) Security Deposits (Note 4.1) 4,375,000 4,375,000 

b) Other advances (Note 4.2) 4,188,608 4,188,608 

ii) Prepaid taxes   621,871   866,346 
 9,185,479 9,429,954 

Unsecured considered doubtful   

Other Loans and Advances 839,214 839,214 

 
 

839,214 
 

839,214 

Less:-Provision for doubtful advance   839,214   839,214 

TOTAL   9,185,479    9,429,954  

5.1 - Security Deposits 
 

Unsecured Considered Good -Litigation pending before courts 

Ms P. Jayamma & Ors - Airport Road Project, Banglore 3,000,000 3,000,000 

Mr. Anil Parashar- Usha Niketan, Jaipur 1,200,000 1,200,000 

TOTAL 
 

4,200,000 
 

4,200,000 

5.2- Other Advances 

 

Unsecured Considered Good -Litigation pending before courts 

Project Cost & Legal Expenses- Airport Road Project, Bangalore 1,765,678 1,765,678 

Litigation Expenses & Stamp Fees- CIDCO, Mumbai 272,430 272,430 

L.G Electronics Pvt Ltd-MCIE,Badarpur, Delhi 450,000 450,000 

Mr.R.L Baisawal & Sons (HUF), C- Scheme,Jaipur 1,700,000 1,700,000 

I.E Contractor, Delhi - 500,000 

TOTAL 
 

4,188,108 
 

4,688,108 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2020 

NOTE NO. 6 

TRADE RECEIVABLES 
 

Particulars  Figures as 

at the end of 

the current 
reporting 

period 31st 

March, 2020 

 Figures as 

at the end of 

the previous 
reporting 

period 31st 

March, 2019 

Unsecured, considered good        5,44,300 - 

   

TOTAL 5,44,300  

 

NOTE NO. 7 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2020 

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2019 

a) Balance with Banks   

In Current Accounts 1,143 370,646 

In term deposit accounts (Maturity less than 3 months) - 1,043,935 

Interest Accrued on Bank FDRs - 4.233 

b) Cash on Hand 6,843 2,408 

TOTAL 
 

 

                   7,986 
 

 

 14,21,222 

NOTE NO.8 

OTHER BANK BALANCES 
 

Particulars Figures as 

at the end of 

the current 
reporting 

period 31st 

March, 2020 

Figures as 

at the end of 

the previous 
reporting 

period 31st 

March, 2019 

In term deposit account (Maturity more than 3 months) (Note 8.1) 100,000 1,00,000 

Interest Accrued on Bank FDRs 87,396 84,735 

TOTAL 
 

1,87,396 
 

1,84,735 

Note 8.1  Term deposit of Rs 1,00,000/- has been given as security against the bank gurantee submitted to Department  

of Trade and Taxes Delhi. The tenure of the Bank Guarantee has already been expired however the Bank 

Guarantee is yet to be released by the Department of Trade and Taxes, Delhi 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2020 

NOTE NO. 9 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
 

Particulars Figures as 

at the end of 

the current 

reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2020 

Figures as 

at the end of 

the previous 

reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019 

Prepaid Expenses 11,250 11,250 

Total 

 

11,250 

 

11,250 

NOTE NO. 9 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
 

Particulars Figures as 

at the end of 
the current 

reporting 

period 31st 

March, 2020 

Figures as 

at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 

period 31st 

March, 2019 

Authorised 
  

1,50,00,000 (Previous year 1,50,00,000) Equity share of Rs 10/- each 150,000,000 150,000,000 

 
Issued 

  

1,35,00,400 (Previous year 1,35,00,400) Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 135,004,000 135,004,000 

 
Subscribed & fully paid up 

  

1,35,00,400 (Previous year 1,35,00,400) Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 135,004,000 135,004,000 

TOTAL 

 

135,004,000 

 

135,004,000 

 Details of reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 
 

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 

No. of shares Rupees No. of shares Rupees 

Number of shares outstanding at the 

beginning of the year 

13,500,400 135,004,000 13,500,400 135,004,000 

Add: Changes during the year - - - - 

Number of shares outstanding at the 

end of the year 

13,500,400 135,004,000 13,500,400 135,004,000 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2020 

  

 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the company. 
 

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 

No of Shares % No of Shares % 

Mrs Sadhana Rai 10,000,000 74.07 - 74.07 

 The company has not reserved any equity shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for sale of 

shares/disinvestment 

 The company for the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date has not 

(i) allotted any equity shares as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash 

(ii) alloted any fully paid up shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares 

 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares 

is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval 

of the shareholders, in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are 

entitled to receive only the residual assets of the company. The distribution of dividend, if any, is in the proportion to 

the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

NOTE NO.11 

OTHER EQUITY 
 

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2020 

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2019 

Other Reserves   

Retained Earnings      (12,23,02,100)   (12,26,21,740)  

TOTAL      (12,23,02,100)    (12,26,21,740)  
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2020 

NOTE NO. 12 

PROVISIONS 

Particulars Figures as 

at the end of 

the current 

reporting 

period 31st 

March, 2020 

Figures as 

at the end of 

the previous 

reporting 

period 31st 

March, 2019 

Provision for employee benefits   

- Gratuity(Unfunded) 1,56,570 1,7,221 

- Leave(Unfunded) 62,027 59,556 

TOTAL 
 

2,18,597 
 

2,31,777 

 

12.1 The following table sets out the disclosure in respect of defined benefit plans for Employee benefits as required under 

Ind AS 19. 

PARTICULARS Gratuity Leave Encashment 

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present   

value of the defined benefit obligation :   

Obligations as at 01.04.2019 98,658 45,326 

Service cost 20,373 2,783 

Interest Cost 7,492 3,442 

Benefits Paid - 20,000 

Acturial(Gain)/ Loss 54,834 31,403 

Obligations as at 31.03.2020 181,357 62,954 

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair   

value of the plan assets :   

Fair Value of plan assets as at 31.03.2020 - - 

Present value of the defined benefit obligations as at 31.03.2020 181,357 62,954 

(Asset)/Liability recognised in the balance sheet 181,357 62,954 

Short Term Provision 9,036 3,398 

Long Term Provision 172,221 59,556 

Total 181,257 62,954 

Assumptions   

Attrition rate 5% 5% 

Discount factor 7.70% 7.70% 

Estimated rate of return on plan assets N.A N.A 

Salary Increase 8% 8% 

Retirement age 60 60 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2020 

NOTE - 13 

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 

Particulars Figures as 

at the end of 

the current 

reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2020 

Figures as 

at the end of 

the previous 

reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019 

a) Other Advances 

Due to Statutory Authorities 

b) Others 

Accrued Expenses 

TOTAL 

 
8,801 

 
2,50,333 

 

2,59,134 

 
                  8,930 

 
              125,561 

 

134,491 

NOTE NO. 14 

PROVISIONS 

Particulars Figures as 

at the end of 

the current 

reporting 
period 31st 

March, 2020 

Figures as 

at the end of 

the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 

March, 2019 

Provision for employee benefits   

- Gratuity(Unfunded) 10,049 9,036 

- Leave(Unfunded) 4,388 3,398 

TOTAL 
 

14,437 
 

12,434 

NOTE 14.1 - Refer Note 12.1 

NOTE NO. 15 

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 
 

Particulars Figures for 

the current 

reporting 
period 

March 31, 2020 

Figures for 

the previous 

reporting 
period 

March 31, 2019 

Sale of Services 8,75,000 29,66,700 

 
TOTAL 

 
8,75,000  

 
         29,66,700  
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2020 

NOTE NO. 16 

OTHER INCOME 

Particulars Figures for 

the current 

reporting 

period 

March 31, 2020 

Figures for 

the previous 

reporting 

period 

March 31, 2019 

Interest on FDR’s 

Interest on Income Tax Refund 

17,748 

17,051 

75,156 

3,212 

TOTAL 
 

34,529 
 

78,368 

 

NOTE NO. 17 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 
 

Particulars Figures for 

the current 

reporting 

period 

March 31, 2020 

Figures for 

the previous 

reporting 

period 

March 31, 2019 

Salaries and wages 12,87,016 13,03,553 

Contribution to Provident and other funds 77,256 76,836 

Staff welfare expenses 3,504 2,514 

TOTAL 
 

1,3,67,812 
 

13,82,903 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2020 

NOTE NO. 18 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Particulars Figures for 

the current 

reporting 
period 

March 31, 2020 

Figures for 

the previous 

reporting 
period 

March 31, 2019 

Legal & Professional Exp 1,53,486 7,19,492 

Payments to Auditor- Audit Fees & Expenses 30,814 30,484 

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 22,613 6,363 

Fee to Stock Exchanges 3,00,000 2,50,000 

Depository Fee(NSDL & CDSL) 95,000 69,086 

Statutory Publication Expenses 58,800 63,120 

Printing & Stationery 55,625 92,329 

Directors Sitting Fees 30,000 44,000 

Postage & Couriers 22,317 1,31,015 

Rent 17,700 15,000 

Misc Expenses 38,691 17,621 

Provison for Doutful Debts - 4,25,426 

Advance Written Off - 5,00,000 

Bank Balances Written Off - 63,065 

TOTAL 
 

8,25,046 
 

          24,27,001 

 
 

NOTE NO. 19 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 

Particulars Figures for 

the current 

reporting 

period 

March 31, 2020 

Figures for 

the previous 

reporting 

period 

March 31, 2019 

A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   

i) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 57,322 (54,834) 

ii) Other (Tax Provisions previous years) 1,792 - 

TOTAL 
 

59,114 
 

(54,834) 
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20. Commitment &Contingent Liabilities:- 
a) LG Electronics India Pvt. Ltd (LG) had filed a suit against the company, Usha India Ltd., and others for the 

recovery of Rs. 4,65,02,400/- given as security deposit for the premises A-41, Mohan Co-operative Industrial 

Estate, New Delhi –110044 taken by it on lease from Usha India Ltd. and against the maintenance service 

agreement for the same premises entered into with the company. The company has denied its liability on the 

ground that it has already assigned the agreement to Lord Mahadev Trust on 6th August, 1997 and transferred 
the security deposit of Rs. 87,19,200/- received by the Company to the said Trust. However, Hon’ble High 

Court of Delhi has passed a part joint decree of Rs. 2,31,25,803/- in favour of LG and the LG filed an execution 

petition and subsequently the Court directed the ICICI Bank, New friends Colony, New Delhi to transfer a sum of 

Rs.4,50,000/- to LG. The liability on account of above decree has not been ascertained by the court among the 
parties to the suit. 

However, the management is of the opinion based onlegal advices,that the Company shall not be liable to make 

any payment to L.G, even the amount of Rs 4,50,000/- shall be recovered by the company from LG Electronics 

India Pvt. Ltd (LG).Presently Rs 4,50,000/- so transferred to LG Electronics has been shown under the head of 
Long term Loan and Advances . 

(b) Other money for which the company is contingently liable 

Assessing officer has filed an appeal before the ITAT, New Delhi against the order of Commissioner of Income 

Tax (Appeals) allowing the appeal for deleting the demand of Rs 6,51,050/- towards the penalty imposed by the 

Assessing Officer U/s 271(1) (C) relating to the assessment year 2003-04. The case was remanded back to 

CIT(Appeals) for adjudication on merit vide order dated 06-06-2008 by ITAT. However the CIT(Appeals) has not 

taken the case till date. 

c) Commitments 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not providedfor (net of advances) 

Nil (previous year Nil) 

21. Details of the transactions with Related Parties as per the requirements of Ind AS-24 are as follows:- 
 

Sl 

No. 
 

Name 

 
Relation 

Nature of 

Transaction 

Transaction for 

the period ended 

31st March,2020 

Transaction for 

the period ended 

31st March,2019 

1. 
Mr. Gyanendra Prakash Managing Director 

Director 

Remuneration 

2,40,000/- 2,40,000/- 

2. 
Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur 

Company Secretary & 

Chief Financial Officer 

Salary 10,68,000/- 10,88,000/- 

3 Mrs. Sadhana Rai Promoter NIL NIL NIL 

Sl No.  As on 

31.03.2020 

As on 

31.03.2019 

A) No. of Shares at the beginning and at the end of the year 1,35,00,400 1,35,00,400 

B) Net Profits after Tax available for Equity Shareholders (9,07,135) (7,68,188) 

C) Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (Annualized) (0.07) (0.06) 

23. Value of Imports on CIF basis : NIL (P. Year Nil) 

24. Details of imported and indigenous raw materials, spare parts, and components consumed 
Raw Materials: NIL(P. Year Nil) Stores & spares: NIL(P. Year Nil) 

25. Expenditure in foreign currency: NIL (P Year Nil). 

Earning In Foreign currency: NIL (P Year Nil). 
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26. Exceptional items NIL (P.Y NIL) 

27. The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been 

relied upon by the auditors. According to such identification, thein formation as required to be reported as per Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 as at March 31, 2020 are as under:- 

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 31.03.2020: 

Current Year NIL (Previous Year NIL) 

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 

appointed day during accounting year 2019-20:Current Year NIL (Previous Year NIL) 

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:Current Year NIL (Previous Year NIL) 

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 31.03.2020:Current Year NIL (Previous Year 
NIL) 

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when 

the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 

expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:Current Year 
NIL (Previous Year NIL) 

28. Pending Litigations- 

a) The contingent liabilities in respect of litigations and their impact on financial position is disclosed in brief at note 

no:20. 

b) Advances and Security Deposits extended for various projects alongwith expenses incurred on them by the 

company are under Litigation as detailed in Note no:5.1 & 5.2. The Company’s Management reasonably expect 
that upon final judgement of each & every case, there would be very positive impact on the company’s financial 

position. 

29. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary. 

30. Figures in brackets denote negative figures. 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS           Director            : Sadhana Rai 

(Firm Regn No 009694N) Din :  01585720 

Director : Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia 

Din : 00480125 

Director : Saurabh Kedia 

Din : 02476376 
Managing Director : Gyanendra Prakash 

 
SAKSHI ARORA 

Din 

 
Company 

: 01444823 

 
: 

PARTNER Secretary &  

M NO:F-528300 Chief Financial  

 
Place: New Delhi 

Officer 
Membership no 

: Sumeer Narain Mathur 
: FCS-9042 

Date: 27th, June,2020   
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        Form No.MGT-11 
           Proxy Form  

(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the 
  Companies Act (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 

 
CIN: L45202UR1991PLC000604    

 
Name of the company: WELLESLEY CORPORATION LIMITED 
 

Registered office:Shop#1, Country Inn, Mehragaon,Bhimtal,Uttarakhand-248179 
 

Name of the member (s):  

Registered address:  

Email id.  

Folio No/Client id:  

DP ID:   

 
I /We, being the member(s) of ____________ shares of the above named company, 
hereby appoint:- 
 

1. Name:________________________ 

Address:_____________________________________________________________ 
Email id:______________________ 
Signatures ____________________, or falling him  
 

2. Name:________________________ 

Address:_____________________________________________________________ 
Email id:______________________ 
Signatures ____________________ or falling him  
 

3. Name:________________________ 

Address:______________________________________________________________ 
Email id:______________________ 
Signatures ____________________ or falling him  
 
As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf 
Atthe29th Annual General Meeting of the company, to be held on the Tuesday, 
15thSeptember,2020 at 10:00 AM at“Country Inn Hotel & Resorts”, Mehragaon ,Bhimtal,  
Uttarakhand-248179, and at theany adjournments thereof in respect of such resolutions 
as are indicated below: 
 
 
 
 

78



 

 
 
 

Ordinary Business For Against 

1 Adoption of Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31,2020 and the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon 

  

2 Re-appointment of Mrs. Sadhana Rai, Director , (DIN:01585720), who 
is liabile to retire by rotation at the 29th Annual General Meeting. 

  

 
 
Signed this ____day of ________2020 

Affix  
Revenue 
Stamp 

 

 
Signatures of shareholder______________________________ 

 
 

Signatures of Proxy holder(s) ___________________________ 
 
 

Note:  
1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed andDeposited 

at the Registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before 
theCommencement of the Meeting 

2) For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statements and Notes, please refer to the Notice of 
the Twenty Seventh Annual General Meeting. 

3) It is optional to put a  in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated 
above. If you leave “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all resolutions, 
your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

 
Attendance Slip 

I, certify that I am registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder ofthe Company.I 
hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Companyon15th 
September,2020 at “Country Inn Hotel & Resorts ”, Mehragaon,Bhimtal, Uttarakhand-248179. 
 

 
 

Clint id/Folio Number___________________        
 
 
 
Signature of attending Member/Proxy_______________________________  
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Dear Members, 
 

Subject: Instruction for e-voting 
 

Pursuant to provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Companies 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 the Company is pleased to offer e-voting 
facility to the members to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions set forth in the 
Notice convening the 29th Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 15th 
September,2020 at 10:00 AM.The Company has engaged the services of National 
Securities Depository Limited (NDSL) to provide e-voting facility. 
 
E-voting facility is available at the link: www.evoting.nsdl.com  

 
The electronic voting details are as under: 

EVEN 
 

 

Login Id 
 

 

Password 
 

 

 
The e-voting will be available during the following voting period:- 

Commencement of E-Voting End of E-Voting 

12th September,2020 at 09:00 hours 
 

14th September,2020at 17:00 hours 

 
Please read the following instructions for casting the votes through e-voting 
 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below: 

 

Step 1 : Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below: 

 

 

How to Log-into NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 

is available under ‘Shareholders’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a 
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Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 

using your log-in credentials, click on  e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 

electronically. 

 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 

and Client ID is 12****** then your user 

ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who holdshares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 

Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 

and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 

 

 

5. Your password details are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 

retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need enter the ‘initial password’ and the 

system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email 

ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 
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the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 

password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 

account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 

shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 

your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your postal address.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 

number,  yourPAN,your name and your registered address. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 

on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

 

Details on Step 2 is given below: 

 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting.Click 

on e-Voting. Then,click on Active Voting Cycles. 

2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” 

in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote. 

4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 

“Confirm” when prompted. 
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6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on 

the confirmation page. 

8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 

 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

 

1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 

etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are 

authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to vijaykaulandco@hotmail.com with a 

copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 

disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 

event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 

User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 

section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request 

atevoting@nsdl.co.in 

4. During the E- Voting period, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in Dematerialized form, as on the record date may cast their vote 
electronically. The record date for the purpose of e-voting is 07th September,2020 
 

5. Since the company is required to provide members the facility to cast their vote by 
electronic means, shareholders of the company holding shares in either physical form or 
in dematerialized form as on cutoff date (record date) of 23rd August,2020  and not 
casting their vote electronically, may only cast their vote at the Annual General Meeting. 
 

6. The Company has appointed Mr. Vijay Kaul as the Scrutinizer to count the votes casted 
in favor or against the resolution proposed for all the items of the Notice as mentioned 
in the Notice and to comply with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 
2013. He will submit his report on 15th September,2020 to the Company Secretary & 
Chief Financial Officer of the Company and in turn the Company Secretary & Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company will announce the same on the date of Annual General 
Meeting. 
 

7. All the documents referred to in this Notice and explanatory statements are open for 
Inspection of the members at the registered office of the Company on all working day 
up to the declaration of the results of the 29th Annual General Meeting of the Company.  
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8/18/2020 Haldwani Railway Station से कंट� ी इन भीमताल को - Google Maps

https://www.google.co.in/maps/dir/Haldwani+Railway+Station,+टांडा+र�ज,+उ�राख�+262402/Country+Inn+Bhimtal,+Bhowali+-+Kutani+Road,+Me… 1/2

मैप डेटा ©2020 5 �क.मी. 

Tanda Range, Uttarakhand 262402
Haldwani Railway Station

NH109 से �ांसपोट� नगर, धौला खेरा प�ंच�

1. उ�र पर NH109 सीधे जाएँ
 Dumka General Store से गज़ुर� (बा� तरफ़ 2.3 �क.मी. म�)

2. NH109 पर रहने के �लए Tata Motors - Gola Ganapati
Motorsके बाद सीधे चलते रह�

 KIA motors को पार कर� (बाए ंहाथ क� ओर)

3. NH109 पर रहने के �लए Bharat Petroleum, Petrol
Pump -Kamla Service Stationके बाद सीधे चलते रह�

 पटेल �ट�क� कॉन�र को पार कर� (दाए ंहाथ क� ओर)

4. NH109 पर बने रहने के �लए सीधे चलते रह�
 Irrigatation Dept Nal Koop Khand Adhishashi Abhiyanta

को पार कर� (बाए ंहाथ क� ओर)

�ाइव कर�

5. दाए ंमुड़�
 पे�ोल_पंप से गज़ुर� (2.2 �क.मी. क� �री पर बा� ओर)

6. गौला ��ज पर जारी रख�
 पुल (बा� ओर ��थत) के पास से गज़ुर�

17 �म (10.1 �क.मी.)

8.5 �क.मी.

400 मी

900 मी

250 मी

12 �म (7.3 �क.मी.)

4.4 �क.मी.

2.9 �क.मी.

�ाइव 47.4 �क.मी., 1 घं 29 �मHaldwani Railway Station से कं�� इन भीमताल को

Venue for the 29th Annnual General Meeting of the Company on 15.09.2020 at 10:00 
AM
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8/18/2020 Haldwani Railway Station से कंट� ी इन भीमताल को - Google Maps

https://www.google.co.in/maps/dir/Haldwani+Railway+Station,+टांडा+र�ज,+उ�राख�+262402/Country+Inn+Bhimtal,+Bhowali+-+Kutani+Road,+Me… 2/2

ये �दशा-�नद�श �सफ़�  या�ा क� योजना बनाने के �लए ह�. �नमा�ण,
�ै�फ़क, मौसम या �कसी और वजह से शायद आपको वैसे हालात
न �मल� जैसे मैप के नतीज� म� �दखाए गए थे. इस�लए, आपको
अपनी योजना इसी �हसाब से बनानी चा�हए. आपको उन सभी
संकेत� या सूचना� का �यान रखना चा�हए जो आपके रा�ते म�
�दख रह ेह�.

Bhowali - Kutani Rd, Mehragaon, उ�राख�ड 263136

महारगांव म� Bhowali-Bhimtal-Haldwani Rd से भोवाली - कुटनी माग�/
भोवाली - भीमताल माग� पकड़�

7. Police Check-Post, Khera पर बाए ंमुड़�
 Lucky General store को पार कर� (दाए ंहाथ क� ओर 5.8 �क.मी.)

8. NH109 पर जाने के �लए Nariman Chowk से दाए ंमुड़�
 प�दवास तुइ�त� �लासेस को पार कर� (बाए ंहाथ क� ओर)

9. ह��ानी-भोवाली माग� क� ओर दाए ंमुड़�
 Bhowali-Bhimtal-Haldwani Rd पर बढ़ते रह�
 �ब� �चकन शॉप को पार कर� (बाए ंहाथ क� ओर)

भगतपुरा म� भोवाली - भीमताल माग� से अपनी मं�ज़ल तक प�ंच�

10. भोवाली - कुटनी माग�/भोवाली - भीमताल माग� पर बाए ंमुड़�
Hill Flight Paraglading पर

 भोवाली - भीमताल माग� पर बढ़ते रह�
 पे�ोल_पंप से गज़ुर� (बा� ओर)

11. �हल फ़ूड रे�टॉरे�ट पर बाए ंमुड़�
 द पाम होटल को पार कर� (दाए ंहाथ क� ओर)
 गंत� बाए ंतरफ होगा

कं�� इन भीमताल

55 �म (28.8 �क.मी.)

6.1 �क.मी.

2.8 �क.मी.

19.9 �क.मी.

3 �म (1.3 �क.मी.)

1.2 �क.मी.

130 मी

85



 

 

 
NOTES 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

86



 

 
 
To, 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If Undelivered, Please return to: 

  
Wellesley Corporation Ltd 

 

B- 210, Ansal Chamber – I 
Bhikaji Cama Place,  
New Delhi – 110066 
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If Undelivered, Please return to:

WELLESLEY CORPORATION LIMITED

B- 210, Ansal Chamber - I, 3, Bhikaji Cama Place, 
New Delhi - 110 066

To,

                        Annual Report 2014-15WELLESLEY
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